


5. Outlook

The business climate over recent years has been
tough and trading conditions are expected to remain
challenging for the next year. Despite the
unfavourable conditions, Dion achieved significant
successes across the globe this year, several bg
projects went live, new name customers were added
and new products were released with other existing
core products enhanced, both functionally and
technically. We have been strengthening our
relationships with existing customers and we are
confident this positive performance will continue.

Dion is now a multi domain company with a clear
and distinct product set covering the gobal financial
markets. While Dion is still a new name, the constituent
staff, products and business units have market
presence and are trusted among our client base.

Each of our newly developed products, FATCA TRAC,
dfferentia, Trade Centre, D-CLEAR and Jade now
have clients and we expect the revenue for these
products to increase significantly. We will continue
to take advantage of the work that has taken place
over recent years in successfully cross-selling and
cross-developing solutions into our global client base.
We will continue to seek and expand on partnerships
in important growth markets around the world
including our strategic partnership with Tech
Mahindra.

Dion currently serves more than 550 clients across 80
countries. Stepping into new markets and expansion
in the existing ones will remain one of Dion’s key
strategies this year.

Since 2008, the financial markets have changed
considerably; there is now more regulation and cost
control than ever before. Dion will continue to
strengthen its position in the existing markets by
focusing on compliance and regulatory needs of our
clients and providing solutions to them that help them
increase revenue and reduce operating costs. Dion’s
aim is to encourage prospects to think in terms of a
long-term relationship with us and consider Dion a
trusted partner in these challenging times, able to
provide IT solutions that solve specific business
problems or enable specific opportunities.

6. Performance highlights 2013-14

6.1 Revenues
Consolidated revenues decreased by 10.66% to
` 222.84 Crore during FY’14 from ` 249.42 Crore during
FY’13. However, the revenue has grown by 18% CAGR
in last 5 years.

6.2 EBITDA
Dion has incurred EBITDA Loss of ` 32.10 Crore during
FY’14 as against EBITDA Profit of ` 11 Crore during
FY’13.

Segment-wise Performance
6.3 Primary Segment – Business Segments

Segments have been identified in line with the
Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17),
taking into account the organisation structure as well
as the differential risks and returns of these segments.
Segment revenue and results figures include the
respective amounts identifiable to each of the
segments and amounts allocated on a reasonable
basis. Other unallocated expenditure includes
expenses incurred on common services which are not
directly identifiable to the individual segments as well
as expenses incurred at a corporate level which
relate to the Company as a whole. The business
segment has been considered the primary segment.
• Revenues from Software Products & Services

decreased from ` 249.42 Crore during FY’13 to `
222.84 Crore during FY’14. This decrease is due
to the decline of our traditional product and
release time of our new products into the market,
which have now started to pick up.

• Revenue from regions other than India and
Australia jumped from  ` 163.8 Crore during FY’13
to ` 189 Crore during FY’14.

• Software revenues contributed to 97.80% of the
total revenues of Dion during FY’14.

6.4 Secondary Segment – Geographical Segments
Revenue from geographical segments is based on
location of its customers, the total carrying amount
of assets and the total costs incurred during the
period.

Segment Revenue (in ` Crore)
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(in `)

Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

Segment Revenue:
Within India 326,651,440 305,502,486

Within Australia 249,753,848 662,270,992

Others 1,890,284,740 1,638,784,440

Total 2,466,690,029 2,606,557,917
Segment Assets:
Within India 3,939,072,069 4,026,041,437

Within Australia                578,897,076 773,009,396

Others 1,627,387,359 1,286,865,723

Total 6,145,356,503 6,085,916,556

Cost incurred for acquiring segment assets:
Within India 10,387,949 29,146,814

Within Australia 928,288 5,142,363

Others 127,623,787 5,977,451

Total 138,940,024 40,266,628

7. Internal Control Systems

Dion’s strategic planning and audit process helps to
ensure operational efficiency within and across the
organisation.

Regular internal audits are conducted by qualified
chartered accountants. The findings are reported and
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board for
review. Feedback and the relevant staff input ensure
the organisation is effectively managing risks.

8. Human Resources

As our Company continues the journey towards
constant growth and innovation, the year saw launch
of various HR initiatives organisation wide. As a
product organisation, the key focus always remains
on attracting top talent from the industry while at the

same time retaining our top performers. To achieve
this objective, the focus was on capability building
and providing employees with an unmatched value
proposition. Talent Engagement, Talent Development
and Talent Management have always been the key
parameters assessed, benchmarked and developed.
These initiatives which were taken in line with our
Company’s Philosophy to grow Leaders from within,
created huge opportunities for bright young minds,
provided a framework for the Company to invest in
the development of top talent and also created a
performance culture where reward is based on merit
and potential. With greater focus on goal based high
performance culture and a clear growth plan for
each employee, the coming years will see the
‘employee learning’ at Dion move up the curve
substantially.

www.dionglobal.com



Report on Corporate Governance
I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values and conduct aimed at
enhancing an organisation’s wealth generating capacity.

Your Company believes that Corporate Governance is a set of guidelines to help fulfil its responsibilities to all its
stakeholders. It is a reflection of the company’s culture, policies, relationship with stakeholders, commitment to
values and ethical business conduct.

The Company’s philosophy lays strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity and the said
philosophty is manifested in its operations through exemplary standards of ethical behavior, both within the
organization as well as in external relationships.

Our Corporate Governance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate information
regarding our financials and performance, as well as ownership and governance of the Company.

Recently, the Securities and Exchange Board of India has amended the Equity Listing Agreement to bring in
additional corporate governance norms for listed companies and also to align the same with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. These norms provide for stricter disclosures and ptotection of investor rights. Though many of
the amendments are effective from October 1, 2014 but your Company has already started to implement amended
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Your Company is in compliance with the requirements of the guidelines on Corporate Governance stipulated
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the BSE Limited. A report on the implementation of the Code of
Corporate Governance as per Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is given below:

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board being representative of stakeholders have a fiduciary relationship and a corresponding duty to all its
stakeholders to ensure that their rights and interests are protected.

A. BOARD’S COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY

The Composition of Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the requirements of Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement and has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

As at March 31, 2014, the Board consists of Nine (9) Directors, one of whom is Global CEO & Managing Director
and remaining Eight (8) are Non-Executive Directors out of which One (1) is Chairman. The Non-Executive Directors
comprise of Four (4) Independent Directors and Four (4) Non-Independent Directors.

The details relating to composition & category of Directors, directorships held by them in other companies and
their membership and chairmanship on various board committees of other companies, as at March 31, 2014, are
given below:

Name of the Director Category No. of No. of Memberships/
Directorships held Chairmanships held in

in other various board committees
companies of other companies

Member Chairman

Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal Non-Executive Chairman 2 2 Nil

Mr. Ralph James Horne Global CEO & Nil Nil Nil
Managing Director

Mr. Shachindra Nath Non-Executive Director 10 2 2

Mr. Hemant Dhingra * Non-Executive Director 8 2 Nil

Mr. C. P. Gurnani Non-Executive Director  4 Nil Nil

Mr. Pradeep Ratilal Raniga # Independent Director  1  1  Nil

Mr. Padam Narain Bahl Independent Director 9 4 4

Mr. Vikram Sahgal Independent Director 2 Nil  Nil

Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty Independent Director  3  1  1

* Appointed as an Additional Director (in the category of Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) on the
Board of the Company with effet from February 6, 2014.

# Categorized from Independent Director to Non-Independent Director of the Company with effect from April
1, 2014.
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Notes:

(i) The Directorships held by the Directors, as mentioned above, do not include the Alternate Directorships,
Directorships held in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 25 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

(ii) The Independence of a Director is determined by the criteria stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement.

(iii) The Chairmanship / Membership of the Committees considered for the above purpose are those prescribed
under Clause 49(I)(C)(ii) of the Listing Agreement viz. Audit Committee and Shareholders’ Grievance
Committee of all Indian Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not and Private Limited Companies
which are Public Limited Companies in terms of Section 3(1)(iv)(c) of the Companies Act, 1956.

(iv) None of the above Directors are related to each other.

(v) None of the above Directors is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Committees
(as specified in Clause 49(I)(C)(ii) of the Listing Agreement) across all the public limited companies in which
he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public limited companies as
on March 31, 2014 have been made by the Directors.

B. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
Dates of Board Meetings are fixed in advance and agenda papers are circulated to Directors generally one
week before the meeting. The Company Secretary, in consultation with the Chairman and CEO & MD, draft the
agenda for each meeting with explanatory notes and distribute the same to the Directors. Each agenda item is
provided with sufficient background and all material information is incorporated in the agenda papers for facilitating
meaningful and focused discussions at the meeting. Video/tele-conferencing facilities are used to facilitate Directors
residing abroad or who are not able to attend meetings physically in India and present at other locations, to
participate in the meetings.

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on the Agenda. Additional
meetings are held when necessary. In case of exigencies or urgencies, the resolutions are passed by Circulation
as well.

During the financial year 2013–14, Four (4) Board Meetings were held on May 28, 2013, August 06, 2013, November
08, 2013, and February 06, 2014 respectively.

The intervening period between the Board Meetings was within the maximum time gap as prescribed under
Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on September 13, 2013.

(a) Attendance of Directors:
Details of attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting (AGM) held during the
financial year 2013-14 are as under:

Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings Attendance at last
Held Attended AGM held on

September 13, 2013
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh – Chairman ^ 4 Nil NA
Mr. Shachindra Nath 4 3 No
Mr. Ralph James Horne – 4 3 No
Global CEO & Managing Director
Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal – Chairman$ 4 3 Yes
Mr. C. P. Gurnani 4 1 No
Mr. Pradeep Ratilal Raniga 4 4 No
Mr. Padam Narain Bahl 4 4 Yes
Mr. Vikram Sahgal 4 2 No
Dr. Preetinder Singh Joshi ^ 4 1 NA
Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty 4 4 No
Mr. Hemant Dhingra * 4 1 NA

^Resigned from the office of Director of the Company with effect from August 06, 2013.

$Appointed as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company with effect from August 06, 2013.

*Appointed as an Additional Director (in the category of Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) on the Board of the Company
  with effectfrom February 6, 2014.

(b) Information available to the Board:

During the financial year 2013-14, the information as required to be placed before the Board of Directors in
terms of Annexure 1A to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement was placed for its consideration such as:
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1. Annual operating plans and budgets;
2. Quarterly results of the Company and its business segments;
3. Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board;
4. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as

delay in share transfer, etc.
The aforesaid information is generally provided as a part of the agenda of the Board Meeting and/or is
placed at the table during the course of the meeting. The CFO and other senior officers are also invited to
the Board Meetings to present reports on the Company’s operations and internal control systems. In special
and exceptional circumstances, additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda is permitted to be taken
up as ‘any other item’. Further, the Board periodically reviews Compliance Reports, in respect of laws and
regulations applicable to the Company, prepared by the Company as well as steps taken by the Company
to rectify instances of non-compliances.

C. SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The shareholding of the Non-Executive Directors in the Equity Shares of the Company as at March 31, 2014 is as
follows:

S. No. Name Number of Equity Shares held

1. Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal 2,64,184

2. Mr. Shachindra Nath Nil

3. Mr. Hemant Dhingra Nil

4. Mr. C. P. Gurnani Nil

5. Mr. Pradeep Ratilal Raniga Nil

6. Mr. Padam Narain Bahl Nil

7. Mr. Vikram Sahgal Nil

8. Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty Nil

TOTAL 2,64,184

D. SHAREHOLDING OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
The shareholding of the Executive Director in the Equity Shares of the Company as at March 31, 2014 is as follows:

S. No. Name Number of Equity Shares held

1. Mr. Ralph James Horne Nil

III. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
As at March 31, 2014, the Board has Six (6) Committees – Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (Formerly Remuneration/Compensation Committe), Stakeholders Relationship Committee (Formerly
Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee), Share Allotment Committee, Loan/Investment & Borrowing
Committee and Banking Operations Committee.
The Restructuring Committee of the Board has been dissolved with effect from August 06, 2013.
All decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Board Committees, appointment of members of the Committees
and fixation of terms of service for Members of the Committees are taken by the Board of Directors.
Details of the role and composition of Board Committees constituted as per requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, including number of meetings held during the financial year and attendance thereat are provided below:

(1) AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a) Composition
The composition of the Audit Committee of the Board as at March 31, 2014 was as under:

S. No. Name Designation

1. Mr. Padam Narain Bahl, Non-Executive & Independent Director # Chairman

2. Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty, Non-Executive & Independent Director $ Member

3. Mr. Vikram Sahgal, Non-Executive & Independent Director Member

4. Mr. C. P. Gurnani, Non-Executive Director Member
# Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from August 06, 2013.
$ Appointed as Member of the Committee with effect from August 06, 2013.

The composition of the Committee meets the requirements of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
All the members of the Committee possess financial and accounting knowledge.

24



(b) Terms of Reference

In terms of the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (effective from April 1, 2014) read with
amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (to be effective from October 1, 2014), the terms of reference
of Audit Committee has been revised on May 27, 2014 to be in consonance with the above provisions.

The current terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under:

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, remuneration, and terms of appointment of auditors of
the Company.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s

Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval.

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems.

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board.

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing.

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background,
etc. of the candidate.

20. Such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors and
/ or other committees of Directors of the Company and as specified in the Listing agreement.

(c) Number of meetings held and the dates on which held:

During the financial year 2013-14, Four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on May 28, 2013,
August 06, 2013, November 08, 2013, and February 06, 2014 respectively.

(d) Attendance of Members:
The attendance of Members at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the financial year 2013-14
was as follows:
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Name of the Member No. of Meetings

Held Attended
Dr. Preetinder Singh Joshi ^ 4 1
Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh ^ 4 Nil
Mr. Vikram Sahgal 4 2
Mr. Padam Narain Bahl 4 4
Mr. C. P. Gurnani 4 Nil
Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty # 4 2

^ Resigned from the office of Director of the Company with effect from August 06, 2013.
# Appointed as Member of the Committee with effect from August 06, 2013.

The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.
Chief Finance Officer and representatives of the Statutory and Internal Auditors normally attend the Audit
Committee meetings by invitation.
Mr. Padam Narain Bahl, Chairman of the Audit Committee, was present at the last Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on September 13, 2013.

(2) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
(a) Composition

The nomenclature of the Remuneration / Compensation Committee has been changed to Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with effect from May 27, 2014.

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board as at March 31, 2014 was as under:-

S. No. Name Position

1. Mr. Padam Narain Bahl, Non-Executive & Independent Director Chairman

2. Mr. Shachindra Nath, Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director Member

3. Mr. Vikram Sahgal, Non-Executive & Independent Director Member

4. Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal, Non-Executive Chairman $ Member

$ Appointed as Member of the Committee with effect from August 06, 2013.

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

(b) Terms of Reference
In terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (effective from April 1, 2014) read with
amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (to be effective from October 1, 2014), the terms of reference
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been revised on May 27, 2014 to be in consonance with
the above provisions.
The current terms of reference of the Committee are as under:
(i) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director

and recommended to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

(ii) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
(iii) Devising a policy on Board diversity;
(iv) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management

in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;
(v) Administration and Superintendence of Dion Global Employee Stock Option Scheme; and
(vi) Such other matters as may, from to time, be required by the any statutory, contractual or other regulatory

requirements to be attended by the Committee or as may be specifically referred to the Committee by
the Board of Directors of the Company or as mentioned in the Listing Agreement.

(c) Number of meetings held and the dates on which held
During the financial year 2013-14, one (1) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
held on August 06, 2013.

(d) Attendance of Members
The attendance of Members at the meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during
the financial year 2013-14 was as follows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings

Held Attended
Mr. Padam Narain Bahl 1 1
Mr. Shachindra Nath 1 1
Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal # 1 N.A.
Mr. Ralph James Horne ^ 1 1
Dr. Preetinder Singh Joshi ^ 1 1
Mr. Vikram Sahgal 1 Nil

^ Resigned as Member of the Committee with effect from August 06, 2013.
# Appointed as Member of the Committee with effect from August 06, 2013.
The necessary quorum was present at the meeting.
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(e) Remuneration Policy
The remuneration of Executive / Non-Executive Directors is governed by the external competitive environment,
track record, potential, individual performance and performance of the Company as well as industry
standards.

(f) Remuneration of Executive Directors
The remuneration of Executive Directors is decided by the Board based on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee within the ceiling fixed by the shareholders and permissible under the
Companies Act, 1956. The remuneration paid to the Executive Director during the financial year ended
March 31, 2014 was as follows:

Name of Salary & Commission Perquisites Retiral Total Stock Service Contract
the Director Allowances payable Benefits Options Tenure Notice

Granted Period

Mr. Ralph James Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil From N.A.
Horne October

15, 2013 to
October
14, 2016

(g) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationships
or transactions with the Company. However, Independent Directors were paid only the sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board of Directors within the limits as prescribed under the Companies Act,
1956.

Details of sitting fees paid to Independent Directors during the financial year 2013-14 is as follows:

S.No Name of Director Sitting Fees (`) Commission (`) Stock Options
1 Dr. Preetinder Singh Joshi * 20,000 - -
2 Mr. Padam Narain Bahl 80,000 - -
3 Mr. Vikram Sahgal 40,000 - -
4 Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty 80,000 - -
5 Mr. Pradeep Ratilal Raniga 80,000 - -

* Resigned from the office of Director of the Company with effect from August 06, 2013.

(3) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

(a) Composition
The nomenclature of the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee has been changed to Stakeholders
Relationship Committee with effect from May 27, 2014.
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board as at March 31, 2014 was as
under:-

S. No. Name Position

1. Mr. Shachindra Nath, Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director Chairman

2. Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal, Non-Executive Chairman Member

3. Mr. Padam Narain Bahl, Non-Executive & Independent Director Member

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

(b) Terms of Reference
In terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (effective from April 1, 2014) read with
amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (to be effective from October 1, 2014), the terms of reference
of Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been revised on May 27, 2014 to be in consonance with the
above provisions.
The current terms of reference of the Committee are as under:
1. Overseeing and reviewing all matters connected with securities of the Company.
2. Redressal of Shareholders’ / Investors’ / Debenture holders’/other security holders complaints/queries

related to transfer / transmission / consolidation / splitting of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, dividend
etc.

3. Overseeing the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company and recommends
measures for overall improvement in the quality of Investor services.

 4. Such other role/functions as may be specifically referred to the Committee by the Board of Directors and
/ or other committees of Directors of the Company or as mentioned in the Listing agreement.
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(c) Number of meetings held and the dates on which held
During the financial year 2013-14, Thirteen (13) meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were
held on July 31, 2013, August 21, 2013, August 30, 2013, September 10, 2013, September 23, 2013, September
30, 2013, October 18, 2013, October 31, 2013, November 15, 2013, December 12, 2013, January 24, 2014,
February 06, 2014 and March 07, 2014 respectively.

(d) Attendance of Members
The attendance of members at the meetings of the Committee held during the financial year 2013-14 was as
follows:

Name of the Member No. of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Shachindra Nath 13 13

Mr. Maninder Singh Grewal 13 13

Mr. Padam Narain Bahl 13 3

The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings.

(e) Investor Grievance Redressal

The details of Investors Complaints received and resolved during the financial year 2013-14 is as under:

No. of Investor No. of Investor No. of Investor No. of Investor
Complaints Complaints Complaints Complaints

pending as at  received from resolved from pending as at
April 1, 2013 April 1, 2013 to April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2014

NIL 41 41 NIL

The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions and grievances expeditiously and replies have been
sent/ issues resolved usually within 15 days from the date of receipt.

Mr. Tarun Rastogi, VP – Legal & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

IV. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
(a) Annual General Meetings

Details of the Annual General Meetings held during the last three financial years are as follows:

Financial Date Day Time Venue Special Resolution(s)
Year passed
2010-11 20.09.2011 Tuesday 11.00 A.M. PHD Chamber of Nil

Commerce &
Industry, PHD House, 4/2
Siri Institutional Area,
August Kranti Marg,
New Delhi - 110016

2011-12 20.12.2012 Thursday 4.00 P.M. Sri Sathya Sai Nil
International
Centre, Pragati
Vihar, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi – 110003

2012-13 13.09.2013 Friday 10.30 A.M. Air Force Auditorium, 1. Keeping of Registers
Subroto Park, at a place other than
New Delhi – 110010 the Registered Office

of the Company.
2. Re-appointment of

Mr. Ralph James
Horne as Managing
Director of the
Company.

3. Grant of Stock
Options of more
than 1% of Issued
Share Capital of the
Company to
identified employees
under Dion Global
Employee
Stock Option
Scheme – 2013.

The above Special Resolutions were passed with requisite majority.

No special resolution was put through Postal Ballot at the last Annual General Meeting nor is proposed at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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(b) Extra-ordinary General Meeting
During the period under review, one (1) Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held as per the details below:

Date Venue Special Resolutions Passed
12.04.2013 Sri Sathya Sai International Centre, *2 Special Resolutions were passed

Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

* Resolutions pertaining to the following matters were passed as Special Resolutions with requisite majority:
- Dion Global Employee Stock Option Scheme – 2013 for the employees of the Company
- Dion Global Employee Stock Option Scheme – 2013 for the employees of the Holding Company (if any)

/ Subsidiary Companies of the Company

(c) Postal Ballot
During the period under review, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot process.

V. DISCLOSURES

A. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large

The required statements / disclosures with respect to the transactions with related parties in the ordinary
course of business were placed periodically before the Audit Committee.

Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with Promoters, the Directors
or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have any potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large. The Company’s major related party transactions are generally with its subsidiaries,
associates and group companies.

B. Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements

The Company has followed the Accounting Standards and Guidelines laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) in preparation of its financial statements.

C. Management Discussion and Analysis Report

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Directors’ Report.

D. Details of non-compliance by the Company

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchange as well
as regulations and guidelines issued by SEBI. Hence, neither any penalty nor any stricture has been imposed
by SEBI, Stock Exchange or any other Statutory Authority on any matter relating to capital markets, during the
last three years.

E. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements

The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of
the Stock Exchange. The Company has submitted the Quarterly Compliance Reports to the Stock Exchange
within the prescribed time limit.

M/s RB & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, have certified that the Company has complied with
the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

F. Details of adoption of non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with and adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement:

(1) The Board

There is no fixed tenure for Independent Directors.

(2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee as detailed in S. No. III (2) herein
above. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is an Independent Director.

(3) Shareholder’s Rights

The quarterly financial results are published in the newspapers as detailed under the heading “Means of
Communication” at Sl. No. VII herein below and also displayed on the website of the Company. The
results are not separately circulated to the Shareholders.

(4) Audit Qualifications

The Company believes in maintaining its accounts in a transparent manner and aims at receiving
unqualified report of auditors on the financial statements of the Company. There are no audit qualifications
in the Company’s financial statements for the financial year under reference.

(5) Whistle-Blower Policy

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism
of reporting illegal or unethical behaviour.
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G. CEO/CFO Certificate
The certificate required under Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement duly signed by the Global CEO &
Managing Director and CFO was placed before the Board and the same is annexed with this report.

VI. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As per extant Clause 49, a ‘Material non-listed Indian subsidiary’ is an unlisted subsidiary, incorporated in India,
whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or
net worth respectively, of the listed holding company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting
year.

During the year, the Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary.

However, as a good corporate governance practice, the minutes of the Board Meetings of the subsidiary companies
and statement of significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiaries were placed at the
Board Meetings of the Company.

VII. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company has promptly reported all material information including declaration of quarterly financial results,
press releases, shareholding pattern, news about the Company and certain other shareholder information to the
BSE Limited (“BSE”), where the equity shares of the Company are listed. Such information is also simultaneously
displayed on the Company’s website i.e. www.dionglobal.com. The financial results - quarterly, half yearly and
annual results and other statutory information are communicated to the shareholders by way of an advertisement
in an English newspaper and in a vernacular language newspaper.

Press Releases are sent to BSE before sending the same to media and are also displayed on Company’s website
i.e. www.dionglobal.com. Copies of the said disclosures and correspondences are also filed with the BSE.

The Company has designated an e-mail ID called investorgrievances@dionglobal.com exclusively for redressal of
shareholders complaints / grievances. For any query, please write to us at the above e-mail Id.

VIII. SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

(i) Annual General Meeting

Date : September 11, 2014

Time : 10.00 A.M.

Venue : Sri Sathya Sai International Centre, Pragati Vihar, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110003

(ii) Directors
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Maninder Singh Grewal will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

Further, Mr. Hemant Dhingra is proposed to be appointed as a Director of the Company.

Mr. Padam Narain Bahl, Mr. Vikram Sahgal and Mr. Rama Krishna Shetty are proposed to be appointed as
Independent Directors of the Company.

The brief profile of the above named Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment are provided in the
Notice convening the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

(iii) Financial Year
The financial year covers the period starting from 1st April and ending on 31st March.

Adoption of Quarterly Results (Tentative)

For the Quarter ended On or Before
June 30, 2014 August 14, 2014 (Subject to Limited Review)
September 30, 2014 November 14, 2014 (Subject to Limited Review)
December 31, 2014 February 14, 2015 (Subject to Limited Review)
March 31, 2015 May 30, 2015 (Audited)

(iv) Book Closure Period
Friday, September 5, 2014 to Wednesday, September 10, 2014 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

(v) Dividend payment date
No dividend has been recommended for the financial year 2013-14.

(vi) Listing details
Equity Shares of the Company are currently listed at the BSE Limited (“BSE”).
Your Company has paid listing fees for the financial year 2014 – 2015 to the BSE.
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(vii) Scrip Code / ID

Scrip Code : 526927
Scrip ID : The Scrip ID of the Company at trading platform of BSE is "DION".

(viii) Market Price Data: BSE Limited (In `)

Month High Low

April ’13* N.A. N.A.

May ’13* N.A. N.A.

June ’13* N.A. N.A.

July ’13 48.40 33.65

Aug ’13 35.00 16.70

Sep ’13 24.25 19.00

Oct ’13 33.25 19.70

Nov ’13 27.85 21.60

Dec ’13 32.30 25.50

Jan ’14 33.75 25.15

Feb ’14 29.90 24.20

Mar ’14 34.00 23.55

* The Company fixed March 1, 2013 as the Record date for determining eligibility of the equity shareholders of the Company for

receiving new equity shares of the Company pursuant to reduction and consolidation of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as approved vide Order dated December 20, 2012 of the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi. Accordingly, the trading in the
Equity Shares of the Company at BSE Limited was suspended w.e.f. February 28, 2013 and the same was commenced with effect

from July 19, 2013. Thus, the data on high and low prices from the month of April, 2013 to June, 2013 was not available.

(ix) Performance of the share price of the Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex *:

* The trading in the Equity Shares of the Company at BSE Limited was suspended w.e.f. February 28, 2013 and the same was commenced
with effect from July 19, 2013. Thus, the closing prices from the month of April, 2013 to June, 2013 were not available and reflected
in the above comparative chart.

(x) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Plot No. 17 to 24, Vittal Rao Nagar, Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500081
Phone: 040 - 44655000, Fax: 040 - 23420814
E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com Website: www.karvy.com
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(xi) Share Transfer System
The Company’s equity shares, being in compulsory Demat segment, are transferable through the depository
system. However, shares in the physical form are processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and
approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The share transfer process is reviewed by the said
Committee.
The Company obtains half-yearly certificate of compliance related to share transfer formalities from a
Company Secretary in Practice as required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange
and files a copy of the Certificate with the Stock Exchange on or before the due date.

(xii) Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2014:

Category No. of Shares held Percentage of Shareholding (%)

Promoters and Promoter Group (A) 17,180,224 53.31

Public Shareholding: (B)

Mutual Funds / UTI Nil 0.00

Banks / Financial Institutions Nil 0.00

FIIs 1,478,500 4.59

Bodies Corporate 10,771,177 33.42

NRIs 221,532 0.69

HUF 119,276 0.37

Trust 4,111 0.01

General Public 2,452,586 7.61

Sub-total (B) 15,047,182 46.69

Total (A+B) 32,227,406 100.00

(xiii) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2014:

Categories (No. of Shares) Shareholders Equity Shares held

No. % to total No. of % to total
 Shareholders Shares  Shares

001-500 18,614 96.75 970,785 3.01

501-1000 299 1.55 210,523 0.65

1001-2000 145 0.75 197,082 0.61

2001-3000 47 0.25 115,013 0.36

3001-4000 23 0.12 79,723 0.25

4001-5000 17 0.09 75,457 0.23

5001-10000 33 0.17 225,094 0.70

10001 and above 61 0.32 30,353,729 94.19

Total 19,239 100.00 32,227,406 100.00

(xiv) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company’s Equity Shares are in compulsorily demat segment and are available for trading in
dematerialized form. To facilitate trading in demat form, there are two depositories i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The Company has entered into agreements with both these depositories. Shareholders can open account
with any of the Depository Participant registered with any of these two depositories. As on March 31, 2014,
26,674,053 Equity Shares (82.77% of the total number of equity shares) of the Company were held in
dematerialized form.

The ISIN No. of the Company is INE991C01034 (with NSDL and CDSL).

(xv) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / ESOPs and Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on equity

Dion Global Employee Stock Option Scheme 2011 (DGSL Scheme 2011)

With the objective of rewarding the key employees for building up the value of the Company and for providing
to the employees a sense of ownership and participation in the Company and also to provide them with an
opportunity to share in the gains of its business, the Company has implemented the DGSL Scheme 2011 for
the Employees / Directors of the Company including the Employees/ Directors of its Subsidiary Company(ies).
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ESOS Scheme Outstanding Options Remarks
as on 31/03/2014

DGSL Scheme 1,39,281
2011

Particulars Details
Fiscal 2013 Fiscal 2014

No. of Options as at beginning 41,84,048 1,39,281
of Fiscal

Options granted Nil Nil

Exercise price of options Nil Nil

Options vested Nil (as per the terms of Grant) Nil (as per the terms of Grant)

Options exercised Nil Nil

Total number of Equity Shares Nil Nil
arising as a result of exercise
of options

Options forfeited/ lapsed 40,44,767 Nil
/ cancelled

Variations in terms of options Nil Nil

Money realised by exercise of Nil Nil
options (in `)

Options outstanding (in force) 1,39,281 1,39,281

Employee wise details of
options granted to

i) Directors and Key Nil
Managerial Personnel

Nil

Nil

 N.A.

33% on expiry of 12 months from grant date
33% on expiry of 24 months from grant date
34% on expiry of 36 months from grant date

For the year ended March 31, 2014, such difference was ` 2.91 million.
(Previous year ` 2.91 million)

The Shareholders of the Company had approved the DGSL
Scheme 2011 on March 18, 2011. 44,66,830 options were
granted till March 31, 2014 in two tranches. During Fiscal 2012
and 2013, 43,27,549 options were cancelled due to voluntary
surrender and/ or disassociation of employees.

(ii) Any other employee who
received a grant in any one
year of options amounting to
5% or more of the options
granted during that year

iii) Identified employees who were
granted options, during any one
year equal to or excee-ding 1%
of the issued capital (excluding
outstan-ding warrants and
conversions) of our Compan1y
at the time of gran

Fully diluted EPS pursuant to issue of
shares on exercise of options
calculated in accordance with the
relevant accounting standard

Vesting schedule

Difference, if any, between
employee compensation cost
calculated using the intrinsic
value of stock options and
employee compensation cost
calculated on the basis of fair
value of stock options
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Particulars Details

For the year ended March 31, 2014, the loss of the Company would
have been higher by ` 2.91 million (for the previous year ended March
31, 2013, the loss of the Company would have been higher by ` 2.91
million).
There was no impact on the EPS for the year ended March
31, 2014 and March 31, 2013 respectively.

Tranche I
Weighted average exercise price: ` 45
Weighted average fair value of options:
i) Year I – ` 20.64
ii) Year II – ` 22.47
iii) Year III – ` 24.03
Tranche II
Weighted average exercise price: ` 46
Weighted average fair value of options:
i) Year I – ` 20.68
ii) Year II – ` 22.48
iii) Year III – ` 24.42

Method used Black Scholes Option Pricing Method

Risk free interest rate Tranche I Tranche II
i) Year I – 7.53% i) Year I – 8.23%
ii) Year II – 7.63% ii) Year II – 8.23%
iii) Year III – 7.72% iii) Year III – 8.24%

Expected Life Tranche I Tranche II
i) Year I – 3 years i) Year I – 3 years
ii) Year II – 3.5 Years ii) Year II – 3.5 Years
iii) Year III – 4 Years iii) Year III – 4 Years

Expected Volatility Tranche I Tranche II
i) Year I – 59.06% i) Year I – 58.50%
ii) Year II – 59.82% ii) Year II – 59.10%
iii) Year III – 60.03% iii) Year III – 60.85%

Expected Dividends Nil

Price of underlying shares in market Tranche I – ` 44.90
at the time of Option grant Tranche II – ` 45.15

In addition to the above, the Shareholders of the Company on April 12, 2013 had approved the Dion Global
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2013 (ESOS-2013) and till date, no Stock Options have been granted under
the ESOS-2013.

 (xvi) Plant Locations

The Company is in the business of software products & services and does not require any manufacturing
plant.

(xvii) Code of Conduct

The Company has in place separate Code of Conducts applicable to the Board Members and the Senior
Management Personnel of the Company and the same have been posted on the website of the Company
i.e. www.dionglobal.com.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of
Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2014.

A declaration to this effect duly signed by Global CEO & Managing Director is annexed and forms part of this
report.

Impact on the profits of Company and
on the EPS arising due to
difference in  the accounting
treatment and for calculation of
the employee compensation cost
(i.e. difference of the fair value of
stock options over the intrinsic value
of the stock options)

Weighted average exercise price
and weighted average fair value of
options whose exercise price either
equals or exceeds or is less than
market price of the stock

Method and significant assumptions
used to estimate the fair value of
options granted:

34



(xviii) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading
In compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, (as amended from
time to time) and to preserve the confidentiality and to prevent misuse of unpublished price sensitive
information, the Company has in place a Code for Prevention of Insider Trading for Directors and designated
employees of the Company, relating to dealing in the shares of the Company.

This Code also provides for periodical disclosures from Directors and designated employees as well as pre-
clearance of transactions by them.

(xix) Address for Correspondence with the Company:
For Securities held in Physical form
M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Plot No. 17 to 24,
Vittal Rao Nagar, Madhapur, Hyderabad - 500081.
Phone: 040 – 44655000
Fax: 040 - 23420814
E-mail: einward.ris@karvy.com

For Securities held in Demat Form
To the Investors’ Depository Participant(s) and / or M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited

Any Query on Annual Report

Mr. Tarun Rastogi
VP - Legal & Company Secretary
5th Floor, Tower A, Logix Cyber Park,
C-28/29, Sector - 62, Noida - 201309,  U.P., India
E-mail: investorgrievances@dionglobal.com

(xx) Green Initiatives:
In order to save the precious forest, preserve the natural resources of the Country and to help your Company
to save on cost, the Company requests your support in this context and Members who have not registered
their e-mail address(es), so far, are requested to register their e-mail address(es), in respect of electronic
holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants. The e-communication
registration form is also available on the website of the Company i.e. www.dionglobal.com under Investors
section. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail address(es) by
writing to M/s Karvy Computershare Services Limited, (Unit: Dion Global Solutions Limited), Plot No. 17 to 24,
Vittal Rao Nagar, Madhapur, Hyderabad – 500081 or through email to einward.ris@karvy.com.
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Certificate & Declaration

CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

We, Ralph James Horne, Global CEO & Managing Director and Tanmaya Das, Chief Finance Officer, of Dion Global

Solutions Limited, hereby certify that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2014 and that

to the best of our knowledge and belief:

• these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading; and

• these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with

the existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year

which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have evaluated

the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed

to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of

which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that –

• there has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year under

reference;

• there has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year under review; and

• there has not been any instances during the year of significant fraud of which we had become aware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s

internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-

Place : New York Ralph James Horne  Tanmaya Das
Date : May 22, 2014 Global CEO & Managing Director Chief Finance Officer

DECLARATION BY CEO & MANAGING DIRECTOR

This is to certify that the Company has laid down Code of Conduct (“the Code”) for all Board Members and Senior

Management Personnel of the Company and copy of the Codes have been placed on the Company’s website

www.dionglobal.com.

It is further certified that the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with

the Code for the year ended March 31, 2014.

Sd/-

Place : New York Ralph James Horne
Date : May 19, 2014 Global CEO & Managing Director
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members,
Dion Global Solutions Limited

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Dion Global Solutions Limited

(“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2014 in terms of requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of

the said Company with BSE Limited.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was

limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance

of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements

of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the

Company has complied with, in all material respect, the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause

49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency

and effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RB & Associates
Company Secretaries in Practice

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi Rachna Batra
Date : July 21, 2014 Proprietor

FCS No. 5747, C.P. No. 8233







Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Dion Global Solutions Limited

Report On the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements
of Dion Global Solutions Limited (“the Company”) which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch, 2014, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and Notes to the
Financial Statements comprising of a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of
the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) read with the General
Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 of the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of the material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstancesbut not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts give the information required by the Act, in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

i) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2014;

ii) In the case of Statement of Profit and Loss, of the loss
of the Company for the year ended on that date;
and

iii) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)

Order, 2003 (‘the Order’), as amended, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub – section
(4A) of Section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4
and 5 of the Order;

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those
books;

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply
with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of Section 211 of the Act, read with
the General circular 15/2013 dated13th September,
2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect
of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;

e. On the basis of written representations received
from the directors as on 31 March 2014, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2014, from
being appointed as a director in terms of clause
(g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Act.

For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N

Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan)

Place : New Delhi Partner

Date : May 27, 2014 Membership No. 085033
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Annexure to Auditor’s Report
Referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on 'Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of the Auditor's Report
of even date to the members of Dion Global Solutions
Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year

ended March 31, 2014.

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the
Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of
three years, which in our opinion,is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. As part of this programme,
the Management has physically verified certain
fixed assets during the year andno material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no substantial part
of fixed assets has been disposed offby the
Company during the year that affects the going
concern status of the Company.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory as defined
in Accounting Standard (AS) -2, 'Valuation of
Inventories'. Therefore clauses (a) to (c) of paragraph
4(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (a) As informed to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to one company covered in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956.The maximum amount
during the year of such loans and year-end
balance is Rs. 1775.78 Lacs and Rs. 1680.95 Lacs
respectively.

(b) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms
and conditions of such loans given by the
Company are prima facie not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the parties are
repaying the principal amounts as stipulated and
are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

(d) There is no overdue amount outstanding at the
end of the year in respect of the above said loans.

(e) The Company has taken unsecured loans from 3
companies covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Act. The maximum
amount during the year of such loans and year-
end balance is Rs. 3845.75 Lacs and Rs. Nil
respectively.

(f) In our opinion, the rate of interest & other terms
and conditions on which these loans have been
taken are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

(g) The Company is regular in repaying the principal
amounts as stipulated and has been regular in
the payment of interest.There are no overdue
amounts in respect of these loans.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal

control system commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business with regard
to purchaseof fixed assets and for the sale of goods
and services. Further, on the basis of our examination
of the books and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have neither come across, nor have been
informed of, any instance of a continuing failure to
correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal
control system.

(v) (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, we are of the opinion that the
particulars of the all contracts and arrangement
that need to be entered into the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act have
been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the transactions
made in pursuance of such contracts or arrange-
ments entered in the register maintained under
section 301 of theAct and exceeding the value
of rupees five lakhs in respect of any party during
the year have been made at prices which are
prima facie reasonable having regard to prevailing
market prices available at the relevant time.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of sections
58A and 58AA of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate
internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of business of the Company.

(viii) As informed to us, the Company is an IT and IT-
enabled services company. Therefore as per
general circular no. 67/2011 dated 30th November,
2011 issued by the Government of India, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Cost Audit Branch, the
Company is not required to maintain cost records
under Section 209(1)(d) of the Act.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing
the undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, investor education and
protection fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax,
customs duty, excise duty, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities. Further, there
were no undisputed amounts outstanding at
the year end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and expla-
nations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues
of income tax, sales tax, custom duty, wealth
tax, excise duty, service tax as at March 31,
2014 which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute except as below:
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S. Name of the Nature of Dues Amount Period to Forum where
No Statute (` Lacs) which the the dispute

amount relates is pending

1 Karnataka Value Demand of VAT/CST on Online 75.21* 2006-07 Appeals before Joint
Added Tax Act, 2003 Information and Data Commissioner of

Retrieval Service. 14.75* 2007-08 Commercial Taxes
(Appeal-2), Bangalore

2 Income Tax Act, 1961 Demand on account of 85.34 2007-08 Appeal before the income
disallowance of Expenditure Tax Appellate Tribunal,

Mumbai

TDS Demand u/s 201(1)/201(1A) 0.24 2007-08 Appeal filed before
3.59 2008-09 CIT(A).

3 Cenvat Credit Disallowance of Cenvat 4.90 2007-08 to Company has filed
Credit taken & utilized on 2010-11 an appeal before

Rules, 2004 Air travel and catering service. Commissioner (A), Service
Tax Department, and
Bangalore.

Non - payment of service - tax 354.54 lacs 1 April 2006 Company has filed an
on management consultancy plus to appeal before CESTAT,
service equivalent 15 May 2008 Bangalore

penalty @

*The full amount is deposited by way of 50% cash and balance 50% is secured by way of bank guarantee.

@ The CESTAT, Bangalore after hearing has allowed stay of demand on deposit of Rs 50.00 lacs that has been deposited
by the Company.

(x) The Company had accumulated losses as at
March 31, 2014. It hasnot incurred cash losses in
the financial year ended on that date and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xi) According to the records of the Company
examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of its
dues to banks.

(xii) The Company has not granted any loans
and advances on the basis of security by
way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

(xiii) The provisions of any special statute applicable
to chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ societies
are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) The Company has maintained proper records of
transactions and contracts for purchase and sale
of units/ securities during the year under review
and timely entries were made therein. All shares,
securities and other investments have been held
by the Company in its own name.

(xv) In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the terms and
conditions of the guarantees given by the
Company for loans taken by others from banks
or financial institutions during the year are not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) As per the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has applied the term loans
for the purpose for which they were obtained.

(xvii) On the basis of an overall examination of the
Company, in our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, there
are no funds raised on a short-term basis which
have been used for long-term investment.

(xviii) The Company has during the year not made
preferential allotment of shares to parties and
Companies covered in register maintained under
section 301 of the Act.

(xix) The Company has not issued any debentures
during the year, therefore clause (xix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by
public issue during the year.

(xxi) During the course of our examination of the books
and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we
have neither come across any instance of fraud
on or by the Company, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.

For S.S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N

Sd/-

(K. K. Tulshan)
Partner

Membership No. 085033

Place: New Delhi

Date:May 27, 2014
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014
As at As at

Particulars Note No March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
` `

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2 422,274,060 422,274,060
Reserves and surplus 3 2,163,722,776 2,178,347,561

Non - current liabilities
Long - term borrowings 4 875,000,000 1,000,000,000
Other long term liabilities 5 862,798 1,800,544
Long - term provisions 6  14,080,584 11,675,562

Current liabilities
Short - term borrowings 7 50,000,000 351,625,000
Trade payables 8 200,583 256,000
Other current liabilities 9 410,913,893 58,429,327
Short - term provisions 10 2,017,374 1,633,382

------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------
TOTAL  3,939,072,068 4,026,041,436

================================= ==================================
ASSETS
Non - current assets

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 17,203,451 21,139,720
Intangible assets 12 21,490,021 26,338,134
Intangible assets under development 13 3,632,343 5,220,113

Non - current investments 14 2,349,293,186 2,283,119,401
Long - term loans and advances 15 200,570,803 171,556,076
Other non - current assets 16 37,670,812 37,670,812

Current assets
Current investments 17 15,000,000 –
Trade receivables 18 236,375,608 219,098,376
Cash and bank balances 19 351,709,047 1,136,303,969
Short - term loans and advances 20 700,223,457 108,425,071
Other current assets 21 5,903,340 17,169,764

------------------------------------------------ ------------------------------------------------
TOTAL  3,939,072,068 4,026,041,436

================================= ==================================
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder SIngh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No. 000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2014
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Note No March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
` `

Revenue

Revenue from operations 23 402,949,456 342,368,266

Other income 24 180,421,352 178,962,858
------------------------------------------------ --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total Revenue  583,370,808 521,331,124
------------------------------------------------ --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Expenses

Employee benefits expenses 25  262,199,221 255,687,012

Finance costs 26  222,356,558 138,782,067

Depreciation and amortization expense 27  19,110,814 19,956,501

Other expenses 28  94,329,000 95,512,268
------------------------------------------------ --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total Expenses  597,995,593 509,937,848
------------------------------------------------ --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional Item and tax expense  (14,624,785) 11,393,276

Exceptional items 29 – 25,336,579

Profit/(Loss) after exceptional Item and before tax  (14,624,785) (11,393,276)

Tax expense  – –

Profit (loss) for the year  (14,624,785) (13,943,303)

Earnings per equity share 30

Basic  (0.49)  (0.47)

Diluted  (0.49)  (0.47)

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder SIngh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No. 000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014
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(Amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) after exceptional Item and before tax  (14,624,785) (13,943,303)
Adjustments for:
-Non cash Items
Depreciation  19,110,814  19,956,501
Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets  (46,403)  (2,763,781)
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment  2,789,013  3,028,541
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Bad Debts  3,794,095  2,731,344
-Non trading incomes/expenses
Interest Income  (124,154,935)  (108,339,467)
Interest and Finance Charges  222,356,558  138,782,067
Income from Mutual Fund  (1,786,448)  (991,844)
Profit on Sale of Investment/Mutual Fund units  (36,675) –
Balances Written Back  (506,557)  11,752,310
Operating Profit before working capital changes 106,894,678 50,212,368
Adjustments for changes in Working Capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (20,929,050)  (35,909,881)
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances  (2,653,168)  (38,691,124)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (other than Interest Payable) (16,014,309)  (2,481,271)
Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities 67,298,150 (26,869,908)

Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities (A) 67,298,150 (26,869,908)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed Assets  (10,387,949)  (29,146,814)
Sale of fixed Assets  107,920  2,154,364
Investments in Subsidiaries  (67,232,785)  (484,701,492)
Sale of Investments  15,535  –
Advances for Intangible Assets under Development  1,587,770  9,898,819
Income Received from Mutual Funds  748,845 –
Loan to Related Parties  (551,879,823)  346,423,215
Interest Received  116,428,959  108,339,467
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits & Other Bank Balances  841,139,068  (75,278,374)
Increase / (Decrease) of Current Investments  (15,000,000)  –

Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Investing Activities (B) 315,527,539 (122,310,814)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of Borrowing Cost on Bank Loan (46,250,000)  (70,000,000)
Share Issue Expenses –  (121,625)
Receipts / (Repayment) of Secured Loans (net)  150,000,000  997,180,622
Receipts / (Repayment) of Unsecured Loans (net)  (201,625,000)  (600,100,000)
Interest Paid  (228,406,543) (156,670,231)

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C)  (326,281,543) 170,288,767

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 56,544,146 21,108,045

Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the Year 27,047,401 5,939,356
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the Year Ended March 31, 2014 83,591,547 27,047,401
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of :-
 - Cash in hand 15,926 47,715
 -Balance with Banks in Current Account 83,575,621 26,999,686

Total (Refer Note 19) 83,591,547 27,047,401

Notes:
(1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement.

(2) Figures in the bracket indicate cash outgo / Income.

(3) Previous Year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-

FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder SIngh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No. 000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2014
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on going concern basis and in terms of
the Accounting Standards notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 in compliance with Section
211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13, 2013 of the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company follows the mercantile
system of accounting and recognizes income and expenditure on accrual basis to the extent measurable and
where there is certainty of ultimate realisation in respect of incomes. Accounting policies not specifically referred
to otherwise are consistent and in consonance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India.

b) USE OF ESTIMATES

The presentation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and
expenses during the reported period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which results are known / materialized.

c) REVENUE RECOGNITION

i) Revenue from fixed price service contracts is recognized in proportion to the degree of completion of service
by reference to and based on milestones/acts performed as specified in the contracts and in case of time
and material service contracts, it is recognized on the basis of hours completed and material used.

ii) Revenue from the sale of user licenses for software applications is recognized on transfer of the title.

iii) Subscription revenue from data base products is recognized proportionately over the period of subscription.

iv) Revenue from annual maintenance contracts is recognized proportionately over the period in which services
are rendered.

v) Revenue from Software Consultancy and Support Services is recognized based on proportionate completion
method as per specific agreements with the customers.

vi) Dividend Income is accounted for as income when the right to receive dividend is established.

vii) Interest and other dues are accounted on accrual basis.

viii) Revenue excludes Value added tax/sales tax and service tax.

ix) Revenue in excess of billings on service contracts is recorded as unbilled receivables and is included in trade
receivable. Billings in excess of revenue that is recognized on service contracts are recorded as deferred
revenue until the above revenue recognition criteria are met and are included in current liabilities.

d) TANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes duties, taxes and other expenses
incidental to development / acquisition and installation.

e) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to
assets will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. The intangible assets are
recorded at their acquisition cost. In respect of internally developed software, costs include development costs
directly attributable to the design and development of software.

Computer software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as an intangible asset and is
being amortized over the estimated useful life.

f) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected
at the recoverable amount.

g) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition of qualifying assets are recognized as part of cost of such assets when
it is considered probable that they will result in future economic benefits to the Company. Other ancillary costs
incurred in obtaining the borrowings which are not eligible for capitalisation are amortized over the tenure of
Borrowings.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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h) DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION
Depreciation on fixed assets (other than Intangible assets) is provided on straight line method as per the following rates:

Class of Assets Put to use up to Put to use after
March 31st 2011 March 31st 2011

Depreciation Depreciation Estimated Useful
Rate (%) Rate (%) Life of the assets

Office Equipments  4.75 20.00 / 33.33 5 / 3 years

Vehicles  9.50 9.50 10.5 years

Computer Networking and Equipments  16.21 20.00 / 25.00 5 / 4 years

Computer and Peripherals  16.21 33.33 3 years

Furniture and Fixtures  6.33 10.00 10 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period or 6 years whichever is earlier. In respect of assets
acquired / sold during the year, depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis.
Intangible assets are amortized over a period of three to six years on a straight-line basis, commencing from the
date the asset is available to the Company for its use.

Fixed assets individually costing up to ` 5,000 are depreciated at the rate of 100% on purchase.

i) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At
the year end, all the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the closing
exchange rate. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the restatement
of such monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

j) INVESTMENTS
Long-term investments are valued at cost. Cost includes incidental charges incurred towards acquisition of such
investments. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of investments is made to recognize a decline, other than
temporary in nature. Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.

k) CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

l) STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
The Stock Options granted by the Company are accounted for as per the accounting treatment prescribed by
Securities & Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999 and the guidance note on Accounting for Stock Options issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, whereby the intrinsic value of the Options are recognized as deferred employee compensation.
The deferred employee compensation is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the
vesting period of Options.

m) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
i) Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the statute are charged

to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
ii) Gratuity liability is a defined obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Company accounts for liability for future

gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation.
iii) The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences and leave encashment as per the

policy of the Company, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial valuation.
 iv) Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in the actuarial

assumptions and are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expenses.
v) The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services

rendered by an employee is recognized during the period when the employee renders the services.

n) TAXES ON INCOME
Current tax is determined on the basis of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the
year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized, except for
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses under the tax laws where deferred tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that there is virtual certainty, supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

o) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, for which it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are determined based on management estimate
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
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Provisions are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to reflect the current best estimates of the obligation.

Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty is treated
as contingent and to the extent not provided for are disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

p) ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES
Assets acquired under leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the
present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease
rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of
interest on the outstanding liability for each period.
Assets acquired under leases where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

q) OPERATING CYCLE
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956. Based on the nature of products and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non current classification of
assets and liabilities.

2 Share Capital (Amount in `)

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each
Opening  70,000,000  700,000,000 70,000,000  700,000,000
Addition by creation of new shares  -  -  - -
Deductions  -  -  -  -

Closing  70,000,000  700,000,000  70,000,000  700,000,000
Preference shares of ` 10/- each
Opening  15,000,000  150,000,000  15,000,000  150,000,000
Addition  -  -  -  -
Deductions - - - -

Closing 15,000,000 150,000,000 15,000,000 150,000,000

Total  85,000,000  850,000,000 85,000,000  850,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each
Opening 32,227,406  322,274,060 32,227,406  322,274,060
Additions by way of fresh allotment
in cash  -  - -  -
Deductions  -  -  - -

Closing (Refer Note 2.1)  32,227,406  322,274,060 32,227,406  322,274,060

1% Non Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference shares of
` 10/- each
Opening  10,000,000  100,000,000 10,000,000  100,000,000
Additions by way of fresh
allotment in cash  -  - - -
Deductions - - - -

Closing  10,000,000  100,000,000  10,000,000  100,000,000

Total  42,227,406  422,274,060 42,227,406  422,274,060

2.1 Pursuant to the Order dated December 20, 2012 of the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, on March 11, 2013, the Board
of Directors of the Company issued 3,22,27,406 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up in place of 6,44,54,811
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up, consequent to reduction and consolidation of equity share capital of the
Company, to the Shareholders of the Company as on the Record Date i.e. March 1, 2013.

2.2 The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of
dividends and the repayment of capital as under:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupee. The dividend proposed by the Board of
the Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the year
ended 31 March 2014 the amount per share recognized as distribution to equity holders was ` Nil (31 March 2013 ` Nil). The
total dividend appropriation for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounts to ` Nil (31 March 2013 ` Nil) including
Corporate Dividend Tax of ` Nil (31 March 2013 ` Nil). In the event of the liquidation of the company, the holder of the
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equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of the equity shares held by the equity share holders.

On 28 September 2011, the Company has allotted 1,00,00,000 fully paid up Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares (“Preference Shares”) of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 190 per share aggregating ` 200 Crores. The
entire Preference Shares shall be redeemed, in one or more tranches, at any time within 20 years from the date of allotment
at the amount equivalent to the sale proceeds of the Shares held in Dion Global Investment Shares Trust, subject to
compliance with provisions of applicable enactments. The Preference Shares shall carry right to receive dividend not
exceeding 1% p.a. on the face value of the shares subject to applicable provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961. In the
event of winding up, holders of preference shares shall be entitled to preferential right of redemption of the amount paid up
and accumulated dividend thereon. The accumulated dividend on Preference Shares till March 31, 2014 is ` 25,06,849.

2.3 The following hold more than 5% shares:

Name of Shareholder As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

No. of % of No. of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

a. Equity Shares

Anuj Chowdhry - Trustee Dion
Global Investment Shares Trust  4,111,842  12.76 4,111,842  12.76

 RHC Holding Private Limited  7,659,008  23.77  7,659,008  23.77

Logos Holding Company Private Limited  1,977,618  6.14  1,977,618  6.14

Tech Mahindra Limited*  5,147,058  15.97  5,147,058  15.97

Oscar Investments Limited  1,779,960  5.52  189,960  0.59

b. Preference Shares

IL & FS Trust Company Limited  10,000,000  100.00  10,000,000  100

* Consequent to the merger of Satyam Computers Services Limited (“Satyam”) into Tech Mahindra Limited, the
name of Satyam stands substituted with Tech Mahindra Limited.

2.4 The particulars of shares reserved for issue under options are as under:

The Shareholders of the Company had approved the Dion Global Employee Stock Option Scheme – 2011 (“Scheme”)
on March 18, 2011.

Details of Stock Options granted under the Scheme are as under:
Grant Date Number of Stock Exercise Price Method of Option Estimated Vesting

Options granted Valuation Fair Value Period

March 23, 2011 2,315,291 ` 45 Black Sholes Option ` 20.64 33% on expiry of 12
Pricing Method Months from Grant Date

` 22.47 33% on expiry of 24 Months
from Grant Date

` 24.03 34% on expiry of 36 Months
from Grant Date

July 15, 2011 21,51,539  ` 46 Black Sholes Option ` 20.68 33% on expiry of 12 Months
Pricing Method from Grant Date

` 22.48 33% on expiry of 24 Months
from Grant Date

` 24.42 34% on expiry of 36 Months
from Grant Date

Every two options entitle the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment of one equity share of ` 10/-
each.

Particulars of options granted and lapsed under the scheme are as below:
Options Outstanding as at the start of the year 139,281
Options granted during the year –
Options exercised during the year –
Options cancelled during the year –
Options outstanding as at the year end  139,281

Employee Share-Based Cost is accounted for by the Company based on intrinsic value method and since on
both the grant dates the market price is lower than exercise price hence no cost have been recognized by the
Company.

Loss of the company would have been higher by ` 2,908,397 (Previous year ` 2,908,397) if accounting was done
based on fair value of stock option instead of intrinsic value of stock option.
There is no impact on earning per share due to intrinsic value method as Company has incurred a loss during the year (Refer note 30).

2.5 Other Disclosures:
Out of above fully paid up equity shares of ̀  10/- each, 4,111,842 equity shares were issued to Dion Global Investment
Shares Trust (sole beneficiary of which is Dion Global Solutions Limited - Refer Interest in Beneficiary Trust in Note 14).
The Equity Shares were issued to the Trust, without any payment being made, pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement
as sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated 28 July 2010.
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Term Loan is secured by first pari
passu charge on all present & future
current & movable fixed assets of
the Company at the rate of Interest
of 12.50% p.a. whose repayment is
in 6 equal semi-annual instalments
after a moratorium of 1 year.

Term Loan is secured by first pari
passu charge on all present & future
current & movable fixed assets of
the Company at the rate of Interest
of 11.75% p.a. whose repayment is
in 12 quarterly equal instalments
after a moratorium of 1 year.

3  Reserves and Surplus

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 7,500,000 7,500,000

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
Closing Balance 7,500,000  7,500,000

================================ ===============================
b. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance 2,184,790,864 2,184,912,489
Less : Premium Utilised for Share Issue Expenses – (121,625)

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
Closing Balance  2,184,790,864 2,184,790,864

c. Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance  (13,943,303) –
Add: Net Profit/(Net Loss) for the current year (14,624,785)  (13,943,303)

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
Closing Balance (28,568,088)  (13,943,303)

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
 Total  2,163,722,776 2,178,347,561

================================ ===============================

4 Long Term Borrowings - Secured

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

 Long term maturities of Term Loan from Banks 875,000,000  1,000,000,000

Total  875,000,000 1,000,000,000

4.1 The requisite particulars in respect of borrowings are as under:

Particulars As at As at Particulars of security/guarantees/
31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013 terms of repayment/default

` `

Term Loan from Indusind Bank Ltd.
Balance Outstanding 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Current Maturity  333,333,333 –
Non - current amount  666,666,667 1,000,000,000

Term Loan from YES Bank Ltd.
Balance outstanding  250,000,000 –
Current Maturity  41,666,667  –
Non - current amount  208,333,333  –

5 Other Long Term Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Security Deposit  816,766 1,769,494
Income Received in Advance  46,032 31,050
Total  862,798 1,800,544

6 Long Term Provisions
As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 34)
Gratuity  12,042,698 10,163,129
Leave Encashment  2,037,886 1,512,433
Total  14,080,584 11,675,562
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7 Short Term Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured

Loans repayable on demand from
related parties – – – 201,625,000

Loan from Banks  50,000,000 – 150,000,000 –

Total  50,000,000 – 150,000,000 201,625,000

Grand Total 50,000,000 351,625,000

7.1 The requisite particulars in respect of borrowings are as under:

Particulars As at As at Particulars of security/guarantees/
31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013 terms of repayment/default

` `

Secured Borrowings

 Loans from Banks

- Yes Bank  50,000,000 150,000,000 Working Capital Demand Loan secured
by hypothecation of all present and future
current & movable fixed assets of the
Company at the rate of Interest of 13.75%
p.a., repayment at the end of tenor

Unsecured Borrowings

Loans from related parties

- Loan from Religare Finvest Limited  –  201,625,000 Loan Repayable on Demand at
the rate of Interest of 12% to 14.50% p.a.

Total unsecured loans and
advances from related parties  –  201,625,000

8 Trade Payables

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Dues of MSME parties (Refer Note 8.1 below) – –

 Dues of other than MSME parties 200,583  256,000

Total  200,583 256,000

8.1 There are no transaction with micro, small and medium enterprises during the year and as such there is no balance
outstanding as at March 31, 2014.

9 Other Current Liabilities
As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Current maturities of long-term debt 375,000,000 –
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings –  6,049,985
Income received in advance 10,680,145  11,371,653
Other payables
- Creditors 5,880,583  8,376,618
- Other Liabilities 19,353,165  32,631,071
Total  410,913,893 58,429,327

10 Short Term Provisions

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 33)
Gratuity  1,338,078 1,129,237
Leave Encashment  679,296 504,145

Total  2,017,374 1,633,382

www.dionglobal.com
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13 Intangible Assets under Development

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Software

Opening Balance 5,220,113  15,118,932

Add : Additions during the year  3,730,351  7,290,912

Gross Intangibles  8,950,464 22,409,844

Less: Capitalized during the year (5,318,121)  (17,189,731)

Total  3,632,343 5,220,113

14 Non Current Investments
Particulars Face As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Value Number Amount Number Amount

Other than Trade Investments (at cost)

Quoted Investment, Fully paid up

Investment in Equity Instruments

Cholamandalam DBS Finance `10  5  702  5  702

Daewoo Motors India Limited `10  25  34  25  34

Eskay Knit (India) Limited `1  1,500  92  1,500  92

Glenmark Pharma Limited `1  41  6,362  41  6,362

India Bulls Real Estate Limited `2  5  –  5 –

Indian Sucrose Limited `10  3,500  14,350  3,500  14,350

J F Laboratories Limited `10  100  160  100  160

Kotak Mahindra Bank `5  10  759  10  759

LML Limited `10  11,165  262,378  11,165  262,378

Lupin Limited `2  40  4,680  40  4,680

Media Video Limited `10  100  485  100  485

Mefcom Agro Limited `10  100  1,603  100  1,603

Omega Interactive Techn. Limited `10  100  155  100  155

Reliance Industries Limited `10  20,212  4,097,946  20,212  4,097,946

Royal Airways Limited `10  300  705  300  705

Tata Finance Limited `10  100  1,410  100  1,410

Wockhardt Limited `5  400  140,320  400  140,320

ZEE Entertainment `1  15,090  471,562  15,090  471,562

Healthfore Technologies Limited `10  50,000  500,000  50,000  500,000

HDFC Limited `10 – –  25  4,776

LIC Housing Finance Limited `10 – –  50  2,230

Reliance Capital Limited `10  – –  5  2,374

Sundram Finance Limited `10 – –  10  1,654

India InfoLine Limited `2 – –  25  534

ICICI Bank Limited `10  – –  2  1,037

IFCI Limited `10  – –  100  1,652

Indiabulls Financial Services `2  – –  5  1,278

 5,503,703 5,519,238

Unquoted Investment, Fully paid up

(a) Investment in Equity instruments of

- Subsidiaries

Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd.  AUD 1  21,702,801  1,038,350,061  20,502,801  971,117,276

Oliverays Innovations Limited `10 50,000  3  50,000  3

 1,038,350,064  971,117,279
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Particulars Face As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Value Number Amount Number Amount

- Other bodies

Bharat Margarine Limited `10  – –  3,229,500  54,901,500

Shree Vaishnavi Dyeing Limited `10  420,000  220,000  420,000  220,000

Inter-Connected Stock Exchange of India Limited `1  1,243,280  15,541,000  1,243,280  15,541,000

Cochin Stock Exchange Limited `10  9,865  493,250  9,865  493,250

 16,254,250 71,155,750

(b) Investments in preference shares of

- Subsidiaries

Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd. AUD 1  18,573,805  798,400,557 18,573,805  798,400,557

(c) Interest in Beneficiary Trust

Dion Global Investment Shares Trust `10
(Refer note on other disclosures in Note 2.6)  4,111,842  496,008,315  4,111,842  496,008,315

Total  2,354,516,889 2,342,201,139

Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of Investments

Unquoted:

– In Bharat Margarine Limited –  (53,842,500)

– In Shree Vaishnavi Dyeing Limited  (220,000)  (220,000)

Quoted:

 – Cholamandalam DBS Finance Limited  (702)  (702)

 – Daewoo Motors India Limited  (34)  (34)

– Eskay Knit (India) Limited  (92)  (92)

– Glenmark Pharma Limited  (6,362)  (6,362)

– Indian Sucrose Limited  (14,350)  (14,350)

– J F Laboratories Limited  (160)  (160)

– Kotak Mahindra Bank  (759)  (759)

– LML Limited  (262,378)  (262,378)

– Lupin Limited  (4,680)  (4,680)

– Media Video Limited  (485)  (485)

– Mefcom Agro Limited  (1,603)  (1,603)

– Omega Interactive Techn. Ltd.  (155)  (155)

– Reliance Industries Limited  (4,097,946)  (4,097,946)

– Royal Airways Limited  (705)  (705)

– Tata Finance Limited  (1,410)  (1,410)

– Wockhardt Limited  (140,320)  (140,320)

– ZEE Entertainment  (471,562)  (471,562)

– HDFC Limited –  (4,776)

– ICICI Bank Limited  –  (1,037)

– IFCI Limited  –  (1,652)

– Indiabulls Financial Services  –  (1,278)

– Reliance Capital Limited  –  (2,374)

– Sundram Finance Limited  –  (1,654)

– LIC Housing Finance Limited  –  (2,230)

– India InfoLine Limited  –  (534)

(5,223,703)  (59,081,738)

Total  2,349,293,186 2,283,119,401
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As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Aggregate amount of :

- Quoted Investments 5,503,703  5,519,238

- Unquoted Investments 2,349,013,186  2,336,681,901

- Provision for diminution in value of investment  5,223,703  59,081,738

Market Value of Quoted Investments  24,499,894  20,429,005

15 Long Term Loans and Advances
As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Security Deposits

Unsecured, considered good

From Related parties –  6,930,000

From Non-Related parties 4,128,660  5,437,672

4,128,660  12,367,672

b. Other loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid Expenses  60,719,289 51,907,984

Advance Payment of Income Taxes
(Net of Provisions ` NIL)  125,720,294 102,232,995

Balances with Service Tax Authorities  5,000,000 –

Value Added Tax Recoverable 1,328,486  1,328,486

Central Sales Tax Recoverable  3,559,375  3,604,240

Excise Duty Recoverable 114,699  114,699

 196,442,143 159,188,404

Total  200,570,803 171,556,076

16 Other Non Current Assets
As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Other Bank balances (Refer note 19.1)

– Fixed Deposit Account  7,045,812 7,045,812

– Debt Service Reserve Account  30,625,000 30,625,000

Total  37,670,812 37,670,812

17 Current Investments

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Unquoted Investment (at Cost)

Investment in Taurus Liquid Mutual Funds 15,000,000 –

Total  15,000,000 –

18 Trade Receivables
As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than
six months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 148,594,012  159,435,923

Unsecured, considered doubtful –  –

Less: Provision for doubtful debts – –

 148,594,012 159,435,923
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As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding
six months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good  87,781,596 59,662,453

Unsecured, considered doubtful  2,825,460 29,403

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  (2,825,460) (29,403)

 87,781,596 59,662,453

Total  236,375,608 219,098,376

19 Cash and Bank Balances

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand  15,926 47,715
Balances with banks in :
- Current Account  83,575,621 26,999,686

 83,591,547 27,047,401
b. Other Bank Balances

- Fixed Deposits (see note 19.1)  268,117,500 1,109,256,568
Total  351,709,047 1,136,303,969

19.1 Particulars of Fixed Deposits (FDR)

As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Total *Kept as Free from Total *Kept as Free from
Securities  any Lien Securities any Lien

FDR Balances with Bank

- Upto 12 months maturity from
date of aquisition  268,117,500  268,117,500 – 1,109,256,568  1,109,256,568 –

Shown as Current Assets  268,117,500  268,117,500 –  1,109,256,568 1,109,256,568 –

- Maturity more than 12 months
but after one year from 12 months
from the reporting date  7,045,812  7,045,812 – 7,045,812  7,045,812 –

- Debt Service Reserve Account  30,625,000  30,625,000 –  30,625,000  30,625,000 –
maintained through out the loan
tenor of 4 years from Indusind Bank Ltd.

Shown as Non Current Assets  37,670,812  37,670,812  – 37,670,812  37,670,812 –

Total  305,788,312  305,788,312 –  1,146,927,380  1,146,927,380 –

* Detail of FDR kept as Securities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

FDR Pledged with Statutory Departments - Non current 7,045,812  7,045,812
Debt Service Reserve account - Non current 30,625,000  30,625,000
FDR against Bank guarantees - Current  268,117,500  1,109,256,568
Total  305,788,312 1,146,927,380

20 Short Term Loans and Advances

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Loans and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered good
Inter Company Deposits including Interest thereon 623,291,651  51,381,706
Other Advances 31,391,778  18,334,264

 654,683,428 69,715,970

Particulars of Fixed Deposits (FDR)
FDR Balance with Bank
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As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

b. Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses  33,993,174  20,606,549
Balances with Service Tax Authorities  3,766,165  17,017,594
Staff Loans / Advances  188,422  559,565
Other Advances  662,267  525,393
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits from Related parties 6,930,000 –

 45,540,028 38,709,101

Grand Total  700,223,457 108,425,071

21 Other Current Assets

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 4,865,737 17,169,764

Income Accrued on Mutual Fund Investments  1,037,603 –

Total  5,903,340 17,169,764

22 Contingent Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

(a) Guarantees

- Bank Guarantees given by the bankers on behalf of the  268,117,500 1,109,256,568
Company in form of letter iof credit for facilitating working
capital to its subsidiary companies (Refer note 18.1 above)

(b) Other money for which the company is contingently liable

- Disputed Income Tax Demands not provided for 8,916,957  31,465,328

- Disputed Service Tax Demands not provided for 48,161,659  48,161,659

- Disputed VAT/ CST Demands not provided for 8,996,633  8,996,633

- Other contingent liabilities with respect to litigations 1,775,000  1,775,000

 335,967,749 1,199,655,188

Details of Contingent Liabilities
1 The Income Tax assessment of Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global

Solutions Limited) for the assessment year 2007-08 was completed by the Assistant Commissioner of Income
Tax-2(1), Mumbai under section 143(3) of the Act vide order dated December 29, 2009. Consequential to certain
disallowances made during the assessment, the AO has raised a demand of ` 8,533,617 on the Company. The
AO has also initiated penalty proceedings under section 271(1) (c) of the Act against the Company.

The Company has preferred an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai against the order
passed by the CIT (A) which is pending for disposal.

2 The Company has received orders dated 30 Mar-11 passed by Assessing Officer, TDS Ward 51 (2) u/s 201(1)/
201(1A) of the Act for financial years 2007-08 and 2008-09, wherein demand amounting to Rs 23,750 and Rs
3,59,590 was raised on the Company on account of TDS not deducted/TDS deducted but not paid by the
Company. The said demand was primarily on account of mismatch in the online database of tax department
with the returns/ challans filed by the Company.

The Company has preferred an appeal against the order before CIT (A)-XXX and it is pending for disposal. For FY 2007-08,
the CIT(A) has directed AO to consider the information supplied by the Company and revise the order accordingly.

3 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a
demand notice of Rs. 3,54,54,363 with equal penalty/-from Commissioner of Service Tax, Div-II, Gr. XII, Bangalore
for the period March 1, 2006 to May 15, 2008 alleging non-payment of service tax on software installation and
tranning as Management Consultancy Service.

The company has contended the view of the department and has filed a suitable appeal before the CESTAT,
Bangalore against the said order on the basis of the fact that the services provided by the company falls
under category Information Technology Software Services ‘ITSS’ under service tax act not under Management
Consultancy Service. Since ‘ITSS’ is taxable from May 2008, service provided by the company before such
period is a non-taxable service. The CESTAT after hearing has allowed 80% stay on the merit of the case has ordered
to deposit Rs. 50,00,000/- which has been complied with. The case is pending for final hearing before CESTAT.
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4 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a
demand of Rs. 75,21,154/- and Rs. 14,75,479/- from Assistant Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, (Recovery-
22), Bangalore for nonpayment of VAT/CST liability on online information and data access services provided
by the Company for the months of February 06, March 06, April 06 to Mar 07 and from Apr 07 to Mar 08
respectively. The company had preferred appeals before Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes (Appeal-
2), Bangalore against the said orders where the demand has been upheld by the JC.

The Company is in process of filing an appeal before Appellate Tribunal, Commercial Tax, Karnataka on the
bonafide belief that the online information service is not liable to VAT.

5 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a demand
notice of Rs. 4,89,732/- including interest and penalty dated 9 Mar 2012 from Assistant Commissioner of Service
Tax, Div-II, Gr. XII, Bangalore for the period 2007-08 to 2010-11 alleging that the company has wrongly taken
input credit on Air travel and catering service. The company has filed an appeal against the said demand notice.

The hearing in the subject matter has been done and the order is reserved by the Commissioner (Appeal-II), Bangalore.
6 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a

show cause notice of Rs. 1,22,17,564/- dated 02 Apr 2012 from Commissioner of Service Tax, Div-II, Gr. XII,
Bangalore for the period 2008-09 to 2010-11 alleging short payment of tax on software development revenue.
The company has filed reply before Commissioner of Central Excise (Adjudication), Bangalore against the said
SCN notice on the bonafide belief that the tax has been duly charged and paid by the Company on said
activities as per the provisions of law.

7 Deal Depot Equities (DDE), has filed a summary suit in the High Court of Bombay (Original Civil Jurisdiction)
(summary suit no. 612 of 2010) against Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited, which has now been merged
with DION. DDE has alleged that in pursuant to purchase order of software namely “Trade Anywhere” to
Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited , the same was followed by part payment of sum of Rs. 6,75,000/-
. Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited did not install and activate the same. DDE has prayed for refund
of advance sum paid of Rs. 6,75,000/- along with interest at the rate 6% . The Hon’ble High Court has transferred
the matter to City Civil Court and the matter is currently pending.

8 Unimetal Ispat Limited had filed a suit (being M.S. No. 13/1997) against DION, before the Civil Judge (Senior Division)
at Alipore, raising an aggregate claim of Rs. 11,00,000/-, in which a decree was granted by the Civil Judge (Senior
Division) at Alipore. DION has filed an appeal in this matter in the High Court of Kolkata. The matter is currently pending.

23 Revenue from Operations
For the year For the year

ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Sale of Products

License Fees  55,168,301 45,901,242

Sale of Services

Software Development 311,138,986  252,940,144

Subscription / Data Content Feed 36,642,169  43,526,880

Total  402,949,456 342,368,266

24 Other Income
For the year For the year

ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Interest Income  124,154,935  108,339,467

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 46,403 –

Net gain / loss on sale of current investments

Profit from Sale/Purchase of investments  1,823,123 991,844

Other Non Operating Income (net of expenses)

Bad Debts Recovered 490,000  630,000

Miscellenous Income  1,597,856  1,983,397

Balances Written Back 506,557  11,752,310

Bank Guarantee Commission from Subsidiaries 51,423,794  53,019,891

Exchange Fluctuation (Net) –  2,245,949

Interest on Income Tax Refund 378,684 –

Total  180,421,352 178,962,858
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25 Employee Benefit Expenses

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Salaries and Wages 235,660,738  231,362,495

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 13,722,378  12,937,078

Staff Welfare Expenses 10,209,975  10,380,340

Training and Recruitment Expenses 2,606,130  1,007,099

Total  262,199,221 255,687,012

26 Finance Costs

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Interest Expense

Interest - Corporate Loans 34,107,408  120,087,410

Interest - Others 163,351,281  11,616,603

Other Borrowing Costs 24,897,869  7,078,054

Total 222,356,558 138,782,067

27 Depreciation and Amortization

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Depreciation 6,622,496  8,756,399

Amortization 12,488,318  11,200,102

Total  19,110,814 19,956,501

28 Other Expenses

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Rent 31,638,598  30,633,719

Repairs & Maintenance  4,088,512  1,912,787

Insurance  112,274  123,316

Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income  110,416  178,003

Advertisement and Sales Promotion  2,094,589  6,685,235

Provision for Doubtful Debts & Bad Debts  3,794,095  2,731,344

Legal and Professional Charges  6,873,767  10,002,220

Membership, Subscription and Empanelment Fees  17,294,152  12,868,456

Travelling and Conveyance  5,972,786  12,296,009

Electricity and Water Expenses  5,687,316  4,589,615

Postage and Telephones  6,008,949  6,538,262

Printing and Stationery  828,539  1,360,973

Loss on sale/Write off of Fixed Assets –  2,763,781

Exchange Fluctuation (Net)  4,393,010 –

Donation and Charity  21,624  25,068
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28 Other Expenses (Contd.)

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Bank Charges  1,323,930  170,669

Database Management and Software Expenses  2,215,485  301,956

Miscellaneous Expenses  472,714  307,477

Other Operating Expenses  868,774  1,497,672

Payment to Auditors (refer note 28.1)  529,470  525,706

Total  94,329,000 95,512,268

28.1 Payment to Auditors*

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

As Auditor:

Statutory Audit Fees 275,000  237,000

Tax Audit Fees 75,000  75,000

In Other Capacity :

Other Services  110,000 170,000

Reimbursement of Expenses  69,470 43,706

Total  529,470 525,706

* Excluding Service Tax

29 Exceptional Items

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Provision for Dimunition in value of Investment - Unquoted  –  18,736,000

Prior year adjustment for Land write off  –  2,332,800

Provision for Dimunition in value of Investment - Quoted –  4,267,779

Total  – 25,336,579

30 Earnings per Equity Share

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax  (14,624,785) (13,943,303)

Less: Dividend on Cumulative Preference Shares  (1,000,000) (1,000,000)

Less: Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax on Cumulative  (162,225) (162,225)
Preference Shares

Profit/(Loss) available for Equity Shareholders  (15,787,010) (15,105,528)

Weighted average number of equity share

For Basic EPS (No.) 32,227,406  32,227,406

For Diluted EPS (No.) 32,366,687  32,366,687

Nominal Value of shares (Rs.) 10  10

Earning per share

Basic  (0.49)  (0.47)

Diluted  (0.49)  (0.47)
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31 Transfer from / to Provisions (Refer note 28 above)

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Transfer to Provisions

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts  2,825,460 29,403

Total  2,825,460 29,403

32 Expenditure in Foreign Currency on account of:
For the year For the year

ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Travelling Expenses 1,111,997  5,298,639

Other Matters 6,201,195  4,186,074

Total  7,313,191 9,484,713

33 Earning in Foreign Exchange from:

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Software Development 205,295,575  215,828,638

Miscellaneous Income 51,423,793  53,019,891

Total  256,719,368 268,848,529

34 Disclosures relating to Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity & Leave Encashment Liability: (Amount in `)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

I Assumptions as at 31st March, 2014

Mortality LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
Ultimate Ultimate  Ultimate  Ultimate

Discount Rate 8% p.a. 8% p.a. 8% p.a. 8% p.a.

Expected Rate of return on plan assets  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.

Expected Average Remaining Service 24 24 30 24

II Changes in present value of obligations

Present Value of Obligation at April 1, 2013  11,292,366  8,482,252  2,016,578  1,798,151

Interest Cost  973,124  806,974  176,051  179,850

Current Service Cost  3,275,643  3,237,707  1,768,907  1,529,946

Liabilities assumed on transferred employees – – – –

Benefits Paid  2,418,263  788,845 668,156  600,338

Actuarial Gain /(Loss) on Obligation  (257,906)  445,722  576,198  891,031

Present Value of Obligation at March 31, 2014  13,380,776  11,292,366 2,717,182  2,016,578

III Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at April 1, 2013 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Expected Return of Plan Assets – – – –

Benefits paid  –  –  –  –

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets – – – –

Fair Value of Plan Assets at March 31, 2014  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.

IV Amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation at March 31, 2014  13,380,776  11,292,366  2,717,182  2,016,578

Fair Value of Plan Assets at March 31, 2014  – – – –

Amount recd/receivable on transfer of employees  – – – –

Un-funded Liability at March 31,2014  13,380,776 11,292,366  2,717,182  2,016,578

Un recognized Actuarial Gain /(Loss)  – – – –

Net (Asset)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet  13,380,776  11,292,366  2,717,182  2,016,578
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34 Disclosures relating to Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Leave & Encashment Liability: (Contd.) (Amount in `)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

V Expense recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss

Interest Cost  973,124  806,974  176,051  179,850

Current Service Cost  3,275,643  3,237,707  1,768,907  1,529,946

Expected Return on Plan Assets  –  –  –  –

Net Actuarial Gain /(Loss) recognized for the period  (257,906)  445,722  576,198  891,031

Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss A/c  4,506,673  3,598,959  1,368,760  818,765

VI Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at March 31, 2014
as per Revised Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956

Current Liability  1,338,078  1,129,237  679,296  504,145

Non Current Liability  12,042,698  10,163,129  2,037,886  1,512,433

Total of Present Value of Obligation as at March 31, 2014  13,380,776  11,292,366  2,717,182  2,016,578

35 Segment Reporting:

Primary Segment – Business Segments:

Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17), taking into
account the organization structure as well as the differential risks and returns of these segments.

Segment revenue and results figures include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and also
amounts allocated on a reasonable basis. Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common
services provided to the segments which are not directly identifiable to the individual segments as well as expenses
incurred at a corporate level which relate to the Company as a whole. The business segment has been considered
as the primary segment.

i) Information about Primary Business Segments (Amount in `)
Particulars Financial Business Software product/Services Investment in Subsidiaries Unallocated Total

2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013

(i) Segment Revenue
External Revenue  490,000  580,000  405,515,632  356,366,524  151,459,250  158,016,122  25,905,926  6,368,477  583,370,808  521,331,124
Inter-Segmental Revenue –  –  –  – –  –  –  –

Total Revenue  490,000  580,000  405,515,632  356,366,524  151,459,250  158,016,122  25,905,926  6,368,477  583,370,808 521,331,124

(ii) Segment Results

Total Segment Results  268,956  (24,987,679)  30,097,641  (14,558,157)  (70,897,307)  19,234,055  –  –  (40,530,710)  (20,311,781)

Unallocated Revenue (net) – – –  –  – –  25,905,926  6,368,477  25,905,926  6,368,478

Unallocated Interest expenses  –  –  –  –  –  – – – –  –

Income Taxes
(Current and Deferred Tax) – – – –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Profit after tax 268,956 (24,987,679)  30,097,641  (14,558,157)  (70,897,307)  19,234,055  25,905,926  6,368,477  (14,624,784)  (13,943,303)

(iii) Segment Assets –  –  646,841,391  565,113,998  2,325,471,924  2,895,944,168 – –  2,972,313,315  3,461,058,166

Unallocated Corporate Assets  –  –  –  –  –  966,758,752  564,983,271  966,758,752  564,983,271

Total Assets – –  646,841,391  565,113,998  2,325,471,924  2,895,944,168  966,758,752  564,983,271  3,939,072,068 4,026,041,437

(iv) Segment Liabilities –  –  528,075,232  67,744,830  825,000,000  1,357,674,985  –  –  1,353,075,232  1,425,419,815

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities  –  –  –  –  –  –  – –  –

Total Liabilities  –  –  528,075,232  67,744,830  825,000,000  1,357,674,985 –  –  1,353,075,232  1,425,419,815

(v) Capital Expenditure  –  –  10,387,949  29,146,814  – –  – –  10,387,949  29,146,814

Unallocated Capital expenditure  –  –  –  – – –  –  – – –

Total Capital expenditure – –  10,387,949  29,146,814 – – –  –  10,387,949  29,146,814

(vi) Depreciation / Amortisation  –  –  19,110,814  19,956,501  –  –  –  –  19,110,814  19,956,501

Unallocated Depreciation
amount  –  –  –  –  –  – –  –

Total Depreciation  –  –  19,110,814  19,956,501  –  –  –  –  19,110,814  19,956,501

(vii) Non Cash Expenditure other
than Depreciation  –  –  2,938,334  4,041,352  –  –  –  –  2,938,334  4,041,352

Unallocated Non cash
expenditure  –  –  –  –  –  – – – – –

Total Non cash expenditure  –  –  2,938,334  4,041,352  –  – –  –  2,938,334  4,041,352
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ii) Secondary Segment – Geographical Segments

Revenue from geographical segment is based on location of its customers and total carrying amount of assets and
total cost incurred during the period to acquire fixed assets is based on geographical locations of the assets.

Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

` `

Segment Revenue:

Within India 326,651,440 252,482,595

Outside India 256,719,368 268,848,529

Total 583,370,808 521,331,124

Segment Assets:

Within India 3,939,072,068 4,026,041,437

Outside India Nil  Nil

Total 3,939,072,068 4,026,041,437

Cost incurred for acquiring segment assets:

Within India 10,387,949 29,146,814

Outside India Nil  Nil

Total 10,387,949 29,146,814

36 RELATED PARTY:

Nature of Relationship Name of the Party

i) Subsidiary Companies 1 OliveRays Innovations Ltd.
2 Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd.

ii) Step Down Subsidiaries 1 Dion Global Solutions Pty. Ltd.

2 Dion Global Solutions (Australia) Pty Ltd.

3 Dion Global Solutions (Developments) Pty Ltd.

4 Dion Global Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Ltd.

5 Dion Global Solutions (NZ) Ltd.

6 Dion Global Solutions (HK) Ltd.

7 Dion Global Solutions (UK) Ltd.

8 Dion Global Solutions (MY) Sdn. Bhd.

9 Dion Global Solutions (Singapore) Pte. Ltd

10 Dion Global Solutions Vietnam Company Ltd.

11 Dion Global Solutions Inc.

12 Indigo (London) Holdings Ltd.

13 Indigo (London) Limited

14 Investmaster Holdings Limited

15 Dion Global Solutions (London) Limited

16 Adminsource (UK) Limited

17 Consort Information Systems Limited

18 Consort Securities Systems Limited

19 Dion Global Solutions (Canada) Ltd.

20 Dion Global Solutions Gmbh

21 Imagnos AG (Under Liquidation)

iii) Associate Companies 1 AEOIU Ltd.

2 Chase Cooper Ltd

3 DBS Financial Systems Ltd

iv) Individuals owning, directly or indirectly 1 Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh
interest in voting power that gives them 2 Mr. Shivinder Mohan Singh
control.
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v) Key management personnel 1 Mr.Ralph James Horne

vi) Enterprises over which any person described 1 Bartleet Religare Securities (Pvt) Ltd

in (iii) or (iv) is able to exercise significant influ 2 Finserve Shared Services Limited

-ence with whom transactions have taken 3 Healthfore Technologies Limited

place 4 Ligare Travels Limited

5 Luxury Farms Private Ltd.

6 Oscar Investments Ltd.

7 Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd.

8 REL Infrafacilities Limited

9 Religare Bullion Limited

10 Religare Capital Markets Limited

11 Religare Commodities Limited

12 Religare Enterprises Limited

13 Religare Finvest Limited

14 Religare Health Insurance Company Ltd

15 Religare Housing Development Finance Corp. Ltd.

16 SMPL Financial Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd.

17 Religare Invesco Asset Management Company Pvt. Ltd.

18 Religare Securities Limited

19 Religare Wealth Management Limited

20 RHC Holding Private Limited

21 RHC IT Solutions Private Limited
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37 OTHER NOTES

a. The Company has unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under the Income Tax Act 1961 of India.
Accordingly, keeping in view uncertainty of taxable income in the future, provision for deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) have not been recognized in the accounts.

b. The Company shares certain costs/ service charges with other companies in the group. These costs have been
allocated between the companies on the basis mutually agreed upon, which has been relied upon by the
auditors.

c. Operating Leases

Particulars 2014 2013

` `

Rent [Including minimum lease payments: Nil (2013: Nil)] 31,638,598  30,633,719

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for
office and residential premises. The lease periods range from 12 months
to 5 years with options of renewal for further periods with increased rent.
The operating leases are cancelable by the lessor or lessee with a notice
period of up to 3 months.

d. Disclosure pursuant to clause 32 of the listing agreements: (Amount in `)

Particulars Amount as on Maximum amount
outstanding

during the year

31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013 2013-14 2012-13

Loans and advances in the nature of
loan to subsidiary

Regius Overseas Holding Co Ltd.  168,094,849 5,884,907  177,577,615 31,961,725

38. PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Figures of the Previous Year have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to the current year
classification.

There is no other information apart from the information already disclosed above required to be disclosed pursuant
to the relevant claused of Revised Schedule VI as inserted to the Companies Act by the Notification No. S.O.447 (E),
Dated 28-02-2011 (As amended by Notification No. F.NO.2/6/2008-CL-V, Dated 30-03-2011).

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder Singh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No. 000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Board of Directors of Dion Global Solutions Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of Dion Global Solutions Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiarieswhich comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014, and
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statementfor the year then
ended, and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
comprising of a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, more particularly, in
accordance with requirements of Accounting Standard
(AS) -21,’Consolidated Financial Statements’ notified by
Central Government under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal
controls relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material
misstatements.

An audit involves performing proceduresto obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risk of the material misstatements, whether due to error or
fraud. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controlsrelevant to the company’s

preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

a) In the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,2014;

b) In the case of Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and

c) In the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of
the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audited the financial statements of subsidiaries,
whose financial statements reflect total assets (net) of
`983.90 Crores as at 31 March 2014, total revenues of
` 229.79 Crores and net cash inflows amounting to ` 0.32
Crores for the year then ended. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management, and our opinion
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Our
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N

Sd/-

(K. K. Tulshan)

Place : New Delhi Partner

Date : May 27, 2014 Membership No. 085033
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2014
As at As at

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
` `

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2 422,274,060 422,274,060
Reserves and surplus 3  1,484,338,314 1,911,375,886

Minority Interest 4  136,344,654 152,667,682

Non - current liabilities
Long - term borrowings 5 877,356,785 1,005,285,788
Other long term liabilities 6  6,513,187 1,875,562
Long - term provisions 7  297,927,876 193,557,089

Current liabilities
Short - term borrowings 8 1,863,295,585 1,614,147,968
Trade payables 9 13,292,427 10,596,587
Other current liabilities 10  974,470,983 671,300,104
Short - term provisions 11  69,542,629 102,835,831

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
TOTAL  6,145,356,500 6,085,916,557

================================= ==================================
ASSETS
Non - current assets

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 61,193,295 67,077,687
Intangible assets 13 21,773,715 26,465,418
Goodwill on Consolidation 13  3,217,893,583 2,793,358,274
Intangible assets under development 14  501,816,478 379,217,516

Non - current investments 15 512,542,565 513,601,565
Deferred tax assets (net) 16 41,731,759 34,775,200
Long - term loans and advances 17  144,029,542 101,726,173
Other non - current assets 18 69,757,671 64,236,676

Current assets
Current investments 19  15,000,000 –
Trade receivables 20  484,401,098 683,670,048
Cash and bank balances 21 437,747,910 1,219,163,558
Short - term loans and advances 22 631,565,544 185,454,678
Other current assets 23 5,903,340 17,169,764

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
TOTAL  6,145,356,500 6,085,916,557

================================= ==================================
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder Singh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No.000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2014
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
` `

Revenue

Revenue from operations 25 2,227,888,759 2,482,426,381

Other income 26 238,801,269 124,131,537
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Total Revenue  2,466,690,028 2,606,557,918
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Expenses

Employee benefits expenses 27  1,740,088,729 1,609,746,033

Finance costs 28  299,696,359 223,501,977

Depreciation and amortization expense 29  161,525,368 149,703,488

Other expenses 30  819,722,954 791,748,797
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Total Expenses  3,021,033,410 2,774,700,295
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional Item and tax expense  (554,343,382) (168,142,377)

Exceptional items 31 – 45,616,103
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Profit/(Loss) after exceptional Item and before tax  (554,343,382) (213,758,480)

Tax expense 32  15,266,786 11,025,829

Profit/(loss) after Tax and Before Minority  (569,610,168) (224,784,309)

Share of Profit/(Loss) transferred to Minority  (41,994,270) 17,291,843
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Profit/(Loss) for the Year  (527,615,898) (242,076,152)
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Earnings per equity share

Basic 33  (16.41) (7.55)

Diluted (16.34) (7.52)

Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder Singh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No.000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014
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(Amount in `)

Particulars March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) after exceptional Item and before tax  (554,343,382) (213,758,480)
Adjustments for:
-Non cash Items
Depreciation  161,525,368  149,703,488
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment 71,077,584  32,649,324
Provision for Doubtful Debts and Bad Debts 9,742,742  14,607,388
Provision for Dimunition in value of Investment  –  19,203,779
Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets  (46,403)  2,763,781
Impact of Adjustment due to Change in Accounting Policy –  20,279,524
-Non trading incomes
Interest Income  (108,607,378)  (108,746,386)
Interest and Finance Charges 299,696,359  223,501,977
Unrealised Exchange Loss/(Gain)  (18,609,287)  14,220,100
Bad Debts recovered & Other Incomes  (110,699,363)  (3,605,240)
Balances Written Back 506,557  11,779,910
Operating Profit before working capital changes  (249,757,202) 162,599,165
Adjustments for changes in Working Capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables  189,526,207  (171,088,617)
(Increase) / Decrease in other Current Assets 11,266,424  4,626,294
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances  (442,164,234)  333,636,932
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities (other than Interest Payable) (12,427,595)  (111,453,802)

Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities  (503,556,400) 218,319,971

Tax Paid –  11,028,994

Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Operating Activities (A)  (503,556,400) 229,348,965

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed Assets (including Capital Work in Process)  (138,315,964)  (309,641,746)
Sale of fixed Assets  107,920  2,154,364
Increase / (Decrease) of Current Investments  (15,000,000) –
(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Deposits & Other Bank Balances  841,139,068  (75,278,374)
Interest Received  108,607,378  108,746,386

Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Investing Activities (B)  796,538,402 (274,019,370)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of Borrowing Cost on Bank Loan  (46,250,000)  (70,000,000)
Share Issue Expenses –  (121,625)
Receipts / (Repayment) of Secured Loans (net) (1,007,490,216)  1,160,587,237
Receipts / (Repayment) of Unsecured Loans (net) 1,128,505,882  (798,730,739)
Interest Paid (308,024,248)  (239,112,237)

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C)  (233,258,582) 52,622,636

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  59,723,420 7,952,230

Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the Year 109,906,990  101,954,760

Cash and Cash equivalents as at the Year Ended 31st March, 2014 169,630,410  109,906,990
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of :-
 -Cash in hand 15,926  47,715
 -Balance with Banks in Current Account 169,614,484  109,859,275

Total (Refer Note 21)  169,630,410 109,906,990

Notes:
(1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in Accounting Standard-3 on Cash Flow Statement.
(2) Figures in the bracket indicate cash outgo/Income.
(3) Previous Year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

Summary of significant accounting policies                                         1
The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-

FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder Singh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No.000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2014
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on going concern basis and in terms of the Accounting
Standards notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 in compliance with Section 211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956
read with General Circular 15/2013 dated September 13, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in respect of Section 133 of the
Companies Act,2013. The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes income and expenditure on
accrual basis to the extent measurable and where there is certainty of ultimate realisation in respect of incomes. Accounting
policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in consonance with the generally accepted accounting principles
in India.

b) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

A. The consolidated financial statements relate to Dion Global Solutions Limited (‘the Company’), its subsidiaries and
step down subsidiaries (‘the Group’). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following
basis:

i) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after as far as possible
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses in accordance
with Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements.

ii) The excess of cost of the Company’s investments in the subsidiary company over the available portion of equity on
the date of investment is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill. The excess of Company’s
share in equity and reserves of the subsidiary company over the cost of acquisition is treated as Capital Reserve.

iii) The share of Minority Interest in the net profit of subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the
income of the group to arrive at the net income attributable to the Company.

 iv) The share of Minority Interest in net assets of subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated financial
statements separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company.

 v) The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the manner as the Company’s
separate financial statements. However, in case of depreciation it was not practicable to use uniform accounting
policies in case of foreign subsidiaries as mentioned in note no. 1 (a).

B. Investments other than in subsidiaries have been accounted as per Accounting Standard 13 on “Accounting for Investments”.

C. The subsidiary / associate companies considered in the consolidated financial statements:

Subsidiaries/Associates of Interest as on Interest as on Country of
Dion Global Solutions Limited March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 Incorporation

Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd. (ROHCL) 100% 100% Mauritius

OliveRays Innovations Ltd 100% 100% India

Dion Global Solutions Pty Ltd.(DGSPL) # 100% 100% Australia

Dion Global Solutions (UK) Ltd.# 100% 100% UK

Dion Global Solutions (Australia) Pty Ltd.* 100% 100% Australia

Dion Global Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Ltd.* 100% 100% Australia

Dion Global Solutions (Developments) Pty Ltd.* 100% 100% Australia

Dion Global Solutions (NZ) Ltd.* 100% 100% New Zealand

Dion Global Solutions (HK) Ltd. * 100% 100% Hong Kong

Dion Global Solutions (MY) Sdn.Bhd.* 100% 100% Malaysia

Dion Global Solutions (Canada) Ltd.* (w.e.f. December 19, 2011) 100% 100% Canada

Dion Global Solutions (Singapore) Pte Ltd.* 100% 100% Singapore

Dion Global Solutions Vietnam Company Ltd.* 100% 100% Vietnam

Dion Global Solutions Inc.*(w.e.f. June 27, 2011) 100% 100% USA

AEOIU Ltd.** 44% 44% UK

Chase Cooper Ltd @ 44% 44% UK

DBS Financial Systems Ltd @ 44% 44% UK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Subsidiaries/Associates of Interest as on Interest as on Country of
Dion Global Solutions Limited March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 Incorporation

Indigo (London) Holdings Ltd.*** (w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Indigo (London) Limited*** (w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Investmaster Holdings Limited*** (w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Dion Global Solutions (London) Limited*** (w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Adminsource (UK) Limited ***(w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Consort Information Systems Limited*** (w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Consort Securities Systems Limited*** (w.e.f. Nov. 24, 2011) 100% 100% UK

Dion Global Solutions Gmbh*** (w.e.f. January 03, 2012) 51% 51% Germany

Imagnos AG*** + (w.e.f. January 03, 2012) 51% 51% Switzerland

* Subsidiaries of DGSPL
** DGSPL has acquired 44% stake in AEOIU Ltd. on August 6, 2010. In terms of AS-21, Accounts of AEOIU Ltd. has been

consolidated on line by line basis since DGSPL has the right to control the composition of board of directors of
AEOIU Ltd.

*** Subsidiaries of Dion Global Solutions (UK) Limited
# Subsidiaries of ROHCL
 @ Subsidiaries of AEOIU Ltd.
 + Under Liquidation-Impact thereof considered in these consolidated financial statements because of prudence

basis.

c) USE OF ESTIMATES

The presentation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the
reported period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which results are
known / materialized.

d) REVENUE RECOGNITION

 i) Revenue from fixed price service contracts is recognized in proportion to the degree of completion of service by
reference to and based on milestones/acts performed as specified in the contracts and in case of time and material
service contracts, it is recognized on the basis of hours completed and material used.

ii) Revenue from the sale of user licenses for software applications is recognized on transfer of the title.

iii) Subscription revenue from data base products is recognized proportionately over the period of subscription.

iv) Revenue from annual maintenance contracts is recognized proportionately over the period in which services are
rendered.

 v) Revenue from software consultancy and support services is recognized based on proportionate completion method as
per specific agreements with the customers.

vi) Royalty revenue is recognized as earned on sales of associate products.

vii) Dividend Income is accounted for as income when the right to receive dividend is established.

viii) Interest and other dues are accounted on accrual basis.

 ix) Revenue excludes Value added tax/sales tax and service tax.

 x) Revenue in excess of billings on service contracts is recorded as unbilled receivables and is included in trade receivable.
Billings in excess of revenue that is recognized on service contracts are recorded as deferred revenue until the above
revenue recognition criteria are met and are included in current liabilities.

e) TANGIBLE ASSETS

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes duties, taxes and other expenses incidental
to development / acquisition and installation.

f) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to assets will flow
to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at their acquisition
cost. In respect of internally developed software, costs include development costs directly attributable to the design and
development of software.

Computer software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as an intangible asset and is
being amortized over the estimated useful life.
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g) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

h) BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition of qualifying assets are recognized as part of cost of such assets when it is
considered probable that they will result in future economic benefits to the Company. Other ancillary costs incurred in
obtaining the borrowings which are not eligible for capitalisation are amortized over the tenure of Borrowings.

i) DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION

Depreciation on fixed assets (other than Intangible assets) is provided on straight line method as per the following rates:

Class of Assets Put to use upto Put to use after
March 31st 2011  March 31, 2011

Depreciation Depreciation Estimated
Rate (%) Rate (%) Useful Life

of the assets

Office Equipments  4.75 20.00 / 33.33 5 / 3 years

Vehicles 9.50 9.50 10.5 years

Computer Networking and Equipments 16.21 20.00 / 25.00 5 / 4 years

Computer and Peripherals 16.21 33.33 3 years

Furniture and Fixtures 6.33 10.00 10 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period or 6 years whichever is earlier. In respect of assets acquired /
sold during the year, depreciation is charged on pro-rata basis.
Intangible assets are amortized over a period of three to six years on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the
asset is available to the Company for its use.
Fixed assets individually costing up to ` 5,000 are depreciated at the rate of 100% on purchase.
In case of foreign subsidiaries of the Company all fixed assets (excluding freehold land) are depreciated on a straight line
basis over their useful life to the economic entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. The Depreciation
rates on Plant & Equipment is 25%-33%.

j) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. At
the year end, all the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated at the closing
exchange rate. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the restatement
of such monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

k) INVESTMENTS
Long-term investments are valued at cost. Cost includes incidental charges incurred towards acquisition of such investments.
Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of investments is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary in nature.
Current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.

(l) CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash comprises cash at bank. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

 m) STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
The Stock Options granted by the Company are accounted for as per the accounting treatment prescribed by Securities &
Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and
the guidance note on Accounting for Stock Options issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, whereby the
intrinsic value of the Options are recognized as deferred employee compensation. The deferred employee compensation
is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the vesting period of Options.

 n) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 i) Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the statute are charged to the

Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
 ii) Gratuity liability is a defined obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Company accounts for liability for future gratuity

benefits based on an actuarial valuation.
 iii) The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences and leave encashment as per the policy of the

Company, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial valuation.
 iv) Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in the actuarial assumptions

and are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expenses.
 v) The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered by

an employee is recognized during the period when the employee renders the services.
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o) TAXES ON INCOME

Current tax is determined on the basis of the taxation laws of the respective countries

Deferred tax is recognized on timing/temporary differences for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted
or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized, except for unabsorbed depreciation
and carry forward of losses under the tax laws where deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that there is virtual
certainty, supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized.

p) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. Provisions are determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date.

Provisions are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to reflect the current best estimates of the obligation.

Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty is treated as
contingent and to the extent not provided for are disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.

q) ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES

Assets acquired under leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at lower of the fair value or the present value of the
minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between
the liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each period.

Assets acquired under leases where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

r) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and capital expenditure on
development is shown as addition to fixed assets.

s) TRANSLATION OF OVERSEAS SUBSIDIARIES

In respect of non-integral overseas subsidiaries, income and expenses are translated at average rate for the period. Assets
and Liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, are translated at the year-end exchange rates. The difference arising out
of translation is included in translation reserve. Any goodwill or capital reserve arising on acquisition of non integral operations
is translated at closing rate which is tested for impairment on every Balance Sheet date.

In respect of integral overseas subsidiary, income and expenses are translated at average rate for the period. At the year
end, all the monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing exchange rate. Exchange differences resulting from
the translation of such monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

t) OPERATING CYCLE

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule VI to the Companies Act,1956. Based on the nature of products and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non current classification of assets and liabilities.

2 Share Capital (Amount in `)

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each
Opening  70,000,000  700,000,000 70,000,000  700,000,000
Addition by creation of new shares -  -  -  -
Deductions - -  -  -

Closing  70,000,000  700,000,000 70,000,000  700,000,000
Preference shares of ` 10/- each
Opening  15,000,000  150,000,000  15,000,000  150,000,000
Addition  -  -  -  -
Deductions  -  -  -  -
Closing  15,000,000  150,000,000  15,000,000  150,000,000

Total  85,000,000  850,000,000 85,000,000  850,000,000
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Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Number Amount Number Amount

Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each
Opening  32,227,406  322,274,060 32,227,406  322,274,060
Additions by way of fresh allotment in cash  -  - -  -
Deductions - -  -  -
 Closing (Refer Note 2.1) 32,227,406  322,274,060  32,227,406  322,274,060

1% Non Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference shares of
` 10/- each
Opening 10,000,000  100,000,000  10,000,000  100,000,000
Additions by way of fresh allotment in cash  -  -  -  -
Deductions  -  -  -  -
Closing 10,000,000  100,000,000 10,000,000  100,000,000
Total  42,227,406  422,274,060 42,227,406  422,274,060

2.1 Pursuant to the Order dated December 20, 2012 of the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, on March 11, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company issued 3,22,27,406 Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up in place of 6,44,54,811 Equity
Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up, consequent to reduction and consolidation of equity share capital of the Company,
to the Shareholders of the Company as on the Record Date i.e. March 1, 2013.

2.2 The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of
dividends and the repayment of capital as under:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of  ̀10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled
to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupee. The dividend proposed by the
Board of the Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During
the year ended 31 March 2014 the amount per share recognized as distribution to equity holders was ` Nil (31
March 2013 ` Nil). The total dividend appropriation for the year ended 31 March 2014 amounts to ` Nil (31 March
2013  ̀Nil) including Corporate Dividend Tax of ` Nil (31 March 2013 ` Nil). In the event of the liquidation of the
company, the holder of the equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of the equity shares
held by the equity share holders.

On 28 September 2011, the Company has allotted 1,00,00,000 fully paid up Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares (“Preference Shares”) of 10 each at a premium of  ̀190 per share aggregating ` 200 Crores. The
entire Preference Shares shall be redeemed, in one or more tranches, at any time within 20 years from the date of
allotment at the amount equivalent to the sale proceeds of the Shares held in Dion Global Investment Shares Trust,
subject to compliance with provisions of applicable enactments. The Preference Shares shall carry right to receive
dividend not exceeding 1% p.a. on the face value of the shares subject to applicable provisions of the Income-tax
Act, 1961. In the event of winding up, holders of preference shares shall be entitled to preferential right of redemption
of the amount paid up and accumulated dividend thereon. The accumulated dividend on Preference Shares till
March 31, 2014 is ` 25,06,849.

2.3 The following hold more than 5% shares:

Name of Shareholder As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

No. of % of No. of % of
Shares held Holding Shares held Holding

a. Equity Shares

Anuj Chowdhry - Trustee Dion 4,111,842  12.76  4,111,842  12.76
Global Investment Shares Trust

RHC Holding Private Limited  7,659,008  23.77  7,659,008  23.77

Logos Holding Company Private Limited 1,977,618 6.14  1,977,618  6.14

Tech Mahindra Limited* 5,147,058 15.97  5,147,058  15.97

Oscar Investments Limited 1,779,960  5.52  189,960  0.59

b. Preference Shares

 IL & FS Trust Company Limited 10,000,000  100.00  10,000,000  100.00

 * Consequent to the merger of Satyam Computers Services Limited (“Satyam”) into Tech Mahindra Limited, the name of
Satyam stands substituted with Tech Mahindra Limited.
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2.4 The particulars of shares reserved for issue under options are as under:

The Shareholders of the Company had approved the Dion Global Employee Stock Option Scheme – 2011 (“Scheme”)
on March 18, 2011.

Details of Stock Options granted under the Scheme are as under:

Grant Date Number of Stock Exercise Price Method of Option Estimated Vesting
Options granted Valuation Fair Value Period

March 23, 2011 2,315,291 ` 45 Black Sholes Option ` 20.64 33% on expiry of 12
Pricing Method Months from Grant Date

` 22.47 33% on expiry of 24 Months
from Grant Date

` 24.03 34% on expiry of 36 Months
from Grant Date

July 15, 2011 21,51,539  ` 46 Black Sholes Option ` 20.68 33% on expiry of 12 Months
Pricing Method from Grant Date

` 22.48 33% on expiry of 24 Months
from Grant Date

` 24.42 34% on expiry of 36 Months
from Grant Date

Every two options entitle the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment of one equity share of ? 10/
- each.

Particulars of options granted and lapsed under the scheme are as below:

Options Outstanding as at the start of the year  139,281

Options granted during the year  –

Options exercised during the year  –

Options cancelled during the year –

Options outstanding as at the year end  139,281

Employee Share-Based Cost is accounted for by the Company based on intrinsic value method and since on
both the grant dates the market price is lower than exercise price hence no cost have been recognized by the
Company.

Loss of the company would have been higher by ` 2,908,397 (Previous year ` 2,908,397) if accounting was done
based on fair value of stock option instead of intrinsic value of stock option.

 There is no Impact on earning per share due to intrinsic value method as Company has incurred a loss during the year
(Refer note 33).

2.5 Other Disclosures:

Out of above fully paid up equity shares of ̀  10/- each, 4,111,842 equity shares were issued to Dion Global Investment
Shares Trust (sole beneficiary of which is Dion Global Solutions Limited - Refer Interest in Beneficiary Trust in Note 14).
The Equity Shares were issued to the Trust, without any payment being made, pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement
as sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi vide its order dated 28 July 2010.

3 Reserves and Surplus

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 17,446,781  17,446,781
Less : Deductions  (3,516,069) –

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
Closing Balance  13,930,712 17,446,781

================================ ===============================
b. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance 2,184,790,864  2,184,912,489
Less : Premium Utilised for Share Issue Expenses  –  (121,625)

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
Total  2,184,790,864 2,184,790,864

Less : Deductions – –
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Closing Balance  2,184,790,864 2,184,790,864
================================ ===============================
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Term Loan is secured by first pari
passu charge on all present & future
current & movable fixed assets of the
Company at the rate of Interest of
12.50% p.a. whose repayment is in 6
equal semi-annual instalments after
a moratorium of 1 year.

Term Loan is secured by first pari
passu charge on all present & future
current & movable fixed assets of the
Company at the rate of Interest of
11.75% p.a. whose repayment is in 12
quarterly equal instalments after a
moratorium of 1 year.

The leases were recorded as an asset
and a liability at the lower of the fair
value of the asset and the present
value of the minimum lease
payments.
The average interest rate implicit to
the leases is 22% p.a.

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

c. Foreign Currency Translation Reserves
Opening Balance  353,203,092  327,025,517
Add: Current Year Transfer 103,860,570  26,177,575

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
 Closing Balance 457,063,662  353,203,092

d. Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance  (644,064,851)  (401,988,699)
Add: Net Profit/(Net Loss) for the current year (527,615,898)  (242,076,152)

----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------
 (1,171,680,749) (644,064,851)

Less: Adjustment arised on Liquidation of Subsidiary 233,825 –
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

 Closing Balance (1,171,446,924)  (644,064,851)
----------------------------------------------- -----------------------------------------------

Total  1,484,338,314 1,911,375,886
================================ ===============================

4 Minority Interest
As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Minority Interest  136,344,654 152,667,682

Total  136,344,654 152,667,682

5 Long Term Borrowings - Secured

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Long term maturities of Term Loan from Banks 875,000,000  1,000,000,000

Long term maturities of finance lease obligations 2,356,785  5,285,788

Total  877,356,785 1,005,285,788

5.1 The requisite particulars in respect of borrowings are as under:

Particulars As at As at Particulars of security/guarantees/
31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013 terms of repayment/default

` `

Long term maturities of Bank Loans

- Term Loan from Indusind Bank Ltd.
 Balance outstanding  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
 Current Maturity  333,333,333 –
 Non - current amount 666,666,667  1,000,000,000

Long term maturities of Bank Loans
 - Term Loan from YES Bank Ltd.

Balance outstanding  250,000,000  –
Current Maturity  41,666,667  –
Non - current amount  208,333,333  –

 - Multiple Finance Lease
Balance outstanding  6,374,829  9,506,780

Current Maturity  4,018,044  4,220,992

Non - current amount  2,356,785  5,285,788
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6 Other Long Term Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Security Deposit 816,766  1,769,494

Income Received in Advance 5,696,421  106,068

Total  6,513,187 1,875,562

7 Long Term Provisions

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 12,042,698  10,163,129

Leave Encashment 45,506,797  15,310,093

Pension and Similar Obligations 240,378,381  168,083,867

Total  297,927,876 193,557,089

8 Short Term Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured

Loans from Banks 365,963,545 –  1,245,321,810 –

Loans repayable on demand from related
parties –  1,497,332,040 –  368,826,158

Total  365,963,545  1,497,332,040  1,245,321,810  368,826,158

Grand Total  1,863,295,585 1,614,147,968

8.1 The requisite particulars in respect of borrowings are as under:

Particulars As at As at Particulars of security/guarantees/
31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013 terms of repayment/default

` `

Secured Borrowings

Loan repayable on demand from banks

- HSBC Bank –  229,302,090 HSBC Multiple Advance Facility is secured
by Standby Letter of Credit from HSBC
Bank (India) Ltd. The Interest rate of the
facility is Base Rate (4.75% to 5.03%) plus
Margin at 1.25% p.a.

- Yes Bank 50,000,000 150,000,000 Working Capital Demand Loan secured
by hypothecation of all present and
future current & movable fixed assets of
the Company at the rate of Interest of
13.75% p.a., repayment at the end of tenor.

 - Afrasia Bank (In Dion Global  249,577,256 293,442,338 This loan is unconditional and irrevocable
Solutions (UK) Ltd secured by Stand by Letter of Credit (SBLC)

for GBP 2.50 Mn plus interest on daily basis
at 1.80% p.a. above six months GBP Libor
which is currently 0.595% p.a.
Repayable within 12 months from the
drawndown date or 15 days prior to expiry
of SBLC given as security whichever is earlier.

 - Afrasia Bank (In Regius Overseas  – 524,179,482 This loan is unconditional and irrevocable
Holding Co. Ltd.) secured by Stand by Letter of Credit (SBLC)

for $ 9.65 Mn plus interest on daily basis at
1.85% p.a. above six months USD Libor which
 is currently 0.485% p.a.
Repayable within 12 months from the
drawndown date or 15 days prior to
expiry of SBLC given as security
whichever is earlier.
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Particulars As at As at Particulars of security/guarantees/
31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013 terms of repayment/default

` `

 -Overdraft with Bank (Dion Global  24,835,265  20,664,953 This is utilization as an open account
Solution (London) Ltd.) (overdraft facility) with Barclays Bank PLC

for working capital purposes. Current
Interest rate is 3.50% p.a.

- Overdraft with Bank  41,551,024  27,732,947 This is utilization as an open account
(In Dion Global Solutions GMBH) (overdraft facility) with Commerzbank

AG. Current interest rate is 7.85% p.a.

- Total Loans repayable on 365,963,545 1,245,321,810
demand from banks

Loans and advances from related parties

 - Loan from Religare Finvest Limited – 201625000 Loan Repayable on Demand at the rate
of Interest of 12% to 14.50% p.a.

- Loan from RHC Financial Services 356,633,862 – Loan Repayable on Demand at the rate
(Mauritius) Ltd. of Interest of 8% p.a. Payable at quarterly
(Dion Global Solutions (UK) Ltd.) rest or such intervals as mutually agreed.

- Loan from RHC Financial Services 387,287,633 – Loan Repayable on Demand at the rate
(Mauritius) Ltd. of Interest of 15% p.a. Payable at quarterly
(Dion Global Solutions (HK) Ltd.) rest or such intervals as mutually agreed.

- Loan from RHC Financial Services 753,410,545  140,052,198 Loan Repayable on Demand at the rate
(Mauritius) Ltd. of Interest of 8% p.a. Payable at quarterly
(Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd.) rest or such intervals as mutually agreed.

- Loan from Religare Infotech Pty. Ltd. – 27,148,960 Loan Repayable on Demand at the rate
of Interest of 9% p.a.

- Total Loans and advances from 1,497,332,040  368,826,158
related parties

9 Trade Payables

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Dues of MSME parties (Refer Note 9.1 below) – –

Dues of other than MSME parties  13,292,427 10,596,587

Total  13,292,427 10,596,587

9.1 There are no transaction with Micro, small and medium enterprises during the year and as such there is no balance outstanding
as at March 31, 2014.

10 Other Current Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Current maturities of long-term debt 375,000,000 –

Current maturities of finance lease obligations 4,018,044  4,220,992

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings –  8,327,889

Income received in advance 318,976,764  334,100,199

Other payables

- Creditors 68,605,682  98,904,213

- Others 207,870,493  225,746,811

Total  974,470,983 671,300,104

11 Short Term Provisions

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 1,338,078  1,129,237

Leave Encashment 68,204,551  101,706,594

Total 69,542,629 102,835,831
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14 Intangible Assets under Development

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Software under development

Gross Carrying Value 859,878,336  576,292,188

Less: Accumulated Amortization as on 31st March'2014* (358,061,858)  (197,074,672)

Total  501,816,478 379,217,516

* Includes amortization of ` 115,516,833 (Last year ` 101,359,879) during the year ended March 31, 2014.

15 Non Current Investments
Particulars Face As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Value Number Amount Number Amount

Other than Trade Investments (at cost)
Quoted Investment, Fully paid up
Investment in Equity Instruments
 Cholamandalam DBS Finance Limited `10  5  702  5  702

Daewoo Motors India Limited `10  25  34  25  34

Eskay Knit (India) Limited ` 1  1,500  92  1,500  92

Glenmark Pharma Limited ` 1  41  6,362  41  6,362

Indian Sucrose Limited ` 10  3,500  14,350  3,500  14,350

J F Laboratories Limited ` 10  100  160  100  160

Kotak Mahindra Bank `5  10  759  10  759

LML Limited `10  11,165  262,378  11,165  262,378

Lupin Limited ` 2  40  4,680  40  4,680

Media Video Limited ` 10  100  485  100  485

Mefcom Agro Limited ` 10  100  1,603  100  1,603

Omega Interactive Techn. Limited ` 10  100  155  100  155

Reliance Industries Limited ` 10  20,212  4,097,946  20,212  4,097,946

Royal Airways Limited ` 10  300  705  300  705

Tata Finance Limited `10  100  1,410  100  1,410

Wockhardt Limited ` 5  400  140,320  400  140,320

ZEE Entertainment ` 1  15,090  471,562  15,090  471,562

Healthfore Technologies Limited ` 10  50,000  500,000  50,000  500,000

India Bulls Real Estate Limited ` 2  5 –  5 –

Sundram Finance Limited ` 10  –  –  10  1,654

Reliance Capital Limited ` 10  –  –  5  2,374

LIC Housing Finance Limited `10  – –-  50  2,230

India InfoLine Limited ` 2  – –  25  534

HDFC Limited ` 10  –  –  25  4,776

ICICI Bank Limited ` 10  –  –  2  1,037

IFCI Limited `10  –  –  100  1,652

Indiabulls Financial Services ` 2  –  –  5  1,278

 5,503,703 5,519,238

Unquoted Investment, Fully paid up

(a) Investment in Equity instruments of

- Other bodies

Bharat Margarine Ltd. ` 10  -  -  3,229,500  54,901,500

Shree Vaishnavi Dyeing Ltd. ` 10  420,000  220,000  420,000  220,000

Inter-Connected Stock Exchange of India Ltd. ` 1  1,243,280  15,541,000  1,243,280  15,541,000

Cochin Stock Exchange Limited ` 10  9,865  493,250  9,865  493,250

 16,254,250 71,155,750

(b) Interest in Beneficiary Trust

Dion Global Investment Shares Trust ` 10 4,111,842  496,008,315  4,111,842  496,008,315

 496,008,315 496,008,315

Total  517,766,268 572,683,303
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Particulars Face As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Value Number Amount Number Amount

Less : Provision for dimunition in the value of Investments

Unquoted:

– In Bharat Margarine Limited –  (53,842,500)

– In Shree Vaishnavi Dyeing Limited (220,000)  (220,000)

Quoted:

– Cholamandalam DBS Finance Limited  (702)  (702)

– Daewoo Motors India Limited  (34)  (34)

– Eskay Knit (India) Limited (92)  (92)

– Glenmark Pharma Limited  (6,362)  (6,362)

– Indian Sucrose Limited  (14,350)  (14,350)

– J F Laboratories Limited  (160)  (160)

– Kotak Mahindra Bank  (759)  (759)

– LML Limited  (262,378)  (262,378)

– Lupin Limited  (4,680)  (4,680)

– Media Video Limited  (485)  (485)

– Mefcom Agro Limited  (1,603)  (1,603)

– Omega Interactive Techn. Ltd.  (155)  (155)

– Reliance Industries Limited  (4,097,946)  (4,097,946)

– Royal Airways Limited  (705)  (705)

– Tata Finance Limited  (1,410)  (1,410)

– Wockhardt Limited  (140,320)  (140,320)

– ZEE Entertainment  (471,562)  (471,562)

– Sundram Finance Limited –  (1,654)

– Reliance Capital Limited  –  (2,374)

– LIC Housing Finance Limited  –  (2,230)

– HDFC Limited  –  (4,776)

– ICICI Bank Limited –  (1,037)

– IFCI Limited –  (1,652)

– Indiabulls Financial Services –  (1,278)

– India InfoLine Limited  –  (534)

(5,223,703)  (59,081,738)

Total 512,542,565  513,601,565

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Aggregate amount of :

- Quoted Investments 5,503,703  5,519,238

- Unquoted Investments  512,262,565  567,164,065

- Provision for diminution in value of investment  5,223,703  59,081,738

Market Value of Quoted Investments  24,499,894  20,429,005

16 Deferred tax Asset (Net)

Particulars As on Charge/(Credit) As on Charge/(Credit) As on
31 March 2014 during the year 31 March 2013 during the year 1 April 2012

Amount (Rs)  Amount (Rs)  Amount (Rs)  Amount (Rs)  Amount (Rs)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between Book
and tax depreciation –  –  –  –  –

Total Deferred tax Liabilities –  –  –  –  –

Deferred Tax Asset
Others Various Items  41,731,759 22,513,136  34,775,200  (872,744)  35,044,878

Total Deferred tax Asset 41,731,759 22,513,136  34,775,200  (872,744)  35,044,878

Total Deferred Tax (Net)  41,731,759 22,513,136  34,775,200  (872,744)  35,044,878
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17 Long Term Loans and Advances

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Security Deposits

Unsecured, considered good

From Related parties  –  6,930,000

From Non-Related parties 4,128,660  5,437,672

 4,128,660 12,367,672

b. Other loans and advances

Prepaid Expenses 60,719,289  51,907,984

Advance Payment of Income Taxes (Net of Provisions ` NIL) 69,179,033  32,403,092

Balances with Service Tax Authorities 5,000,000 –

Value Added Tax Recoverable  1,328,486  1,328,486

Central Sales Tax Recoverable 3,559,375  3,604,240

Excise Duty Recoverable 114,699  114,699

 139,900,882 89,358,501

Grand Total  144,029,542 101,726,173

18 Other Non Current Assets

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Long term trade receivables
(including trade receivables on deferred credit terms)

Unsecured, considered good  32,086,859 26,565,864

 32,086,859 26,565,864

b. Others

Other Bank balances (Refer note 21.1)

- Fixed Deposit Account 7,045,812  7,045,812

-Debt Service Reserve Account 30,625,000  30,625,000

 37,670,812 37,670,812

Total 69,757,671 64,236,676

19 Current Investments

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Unquoted Investment (at Cost)

Investment in Taurus Liquid Mutual Funds 15,000,000 –

Total  15,000,000 –

20 Trade Receivables

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from
the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 468,451,505  661,229,049

Unsecured, considered doubtful  –  –

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  – –

 468,451,505 661,229,049
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Particulars of Fixed Deposits (FDR)
FDR Balances with Bank

20 Trade Receivables (Contd.)

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding
six months from the date they are due for payment

Unsecured, considered good 15,949,593  22,440,998

Unsecured, considered doubtful 3,852,069  3,834,728

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (3,852,069)  (3,834,728)

 15,949,593 22,440,998

Total  484,401,098 683,670,048

21 Cash and Bank Balances

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand 15,926 47,715

Balances with banks in :
- Current Account  169,614,484 109,859,275

 169,630,410 109,906,990

b. Other Bank Balances
- Fixed Deposits (see note 21.1)  268,117,500 1,109,256,568

Total  437,747,910 1,219,163,558

21.1 Particulars of Fixed Deposits (FDR)

As at 31 March 2014 As at 31 March 2013

Total *Kept as Free from Total *Kept as Free from
Securities  any Lien Securities any Lien

FDR Balances with Bank

- Upto 12 months maturity
from date of aquisition  268,117,500  268,117,500 – 1,109,256,568  1,109,256,568 –

Shown as Current Assets  268,117,500  268,117,500  – 1,109,256,568  1,109,256,568  –

- Maturity more than 12 months but  7,045,812  7,045,812 –  7,045,812  7,045,812 –
after one year from 12 months from
the reporting date

- Debt Service Reserve Account  30,625,000  30,625,000 –  30,625,000  30,625,000
maintained through out the
Term loan tenor of 4 years with
Indusind Bank Ltd.

Shown as Non Current Assets  37,670,812  37,670,812  – 37,670,812  37,670,812  –

Total  305,788,312  305,788,312 – 1,146,927,380  1,146,927,380 –

* Detail of FDR kept as Securities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

FDR against Bank guarantees-Current 268,117,500  1,109,256,568

FDR Pledged with Statutory Departments-Non Current 7,045,812  7,045,812

Debt Service Reserve account - Non current 30,625,000  30,625,000

Total  305,788,312 1,146,927,380
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22 Short Term Loans and Advances

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

a. Loans and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered good
Inter Company Deposits including Interest thereon 474,566,442 62,199,827

Other Advances 15,952,783 7,734,175

490,519,225 69,934,002

b. Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses  78,501,269  64,411,098

Balances with Service Authorities  3,838,736  17,033,680

Staff Loans / Advances & Other Receivables  20,777,250  2,256,995

Other Advances  662,267  525,393

Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits

From Related Parties  6,930,000 –

From Non-Related parties 30,336,797  31,293,510

141,046,319  115,520,676

Grand Total  631,565,544 185,454,678

23 Other Current Assets

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks 4,865,737  17,169,764

Income Accrued on Mutual Fund Investments 1,037,603 –

Total  5,903,340 17,169,764

24 Contingent Liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

In Holding Company:

Disputed Income Tax Demands not provided for 8,916,957 31,465,328

Disputed Service Tax Demands not provided for 48,161,659  48,161,659

Disputed VAT/ CST Demands not provided for 8,996,633  8,996,633

Other contingent liabilities with respect to litigations  1,775,000  1,775,000

In Subsidiary Companies:-

Disputed VAT Demands not provided for –  3,085,585

Total  67,850,249 93,484,205

Details of Contingent Liabilities
1. The Income Tax assessment of Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global

Solutions Limited) for the assessment year 2007-08 was completed by the Assistant Commissioner of Income
Tax-2(1), Mumbai under section 143(3) of the Act vide order dated December 29, 2009. Consequential to
certain disallowances made during the assessment, the AO has raised a demand of Rs. 8,533,617 on the
Company. The AO has also initiated penalty proceedings under section 271(1) (c) of the Act against the
Company.

The Company has preferred an appeal before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai against the order
passed by the CIT (A) which is pending for disposal.

2 The Company has received orders dated 30 Mar-11 passed by Assessing Officer, TDS Ward 51 (2) u/s 201(1)/
201(1A) of the Act for financial years 2007-08 and 2008-09, wherein demand amounting to Rs 23,750 and Rs
3,59,590 was raised on the Company on account of TDS not deducted/TDS deducted but not paid by the
Company. The said demand was primarily on account of mismatch in the online database of tax department
with the returns/ challans filed by the Company.
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The Company has preferred an appeal against the order before CIT (A)-XXX and it is pending for disposal. For
FY 2007-08, the CIT(A) has directed AO to consider the information supplied by the Company and revise the
order accordingly.

3 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a
demand notice of Rs. 3,54,54,363 with equal penalty/-from Commissioner of Service Tax, Div-II, Gr. XII, Bangalore
for the period March 1, 2006 to May 15, 2008 alleging non-payment of service tax on software installation and
tranning as Management Consultancy Service.
The company has contended the view of the department and has filed a suitable appeal before the CESTAT,
Bangalore against the said order on the basis of the fact that the services provided by the company falls
under category Information Technology Software Services ‘ITSS’ under service tax act not under Management
Consultancy Service. Since ‘ITSS’ is taxable from May 2008, service provided by the company before such period
is a non-taxable service. The CESTAT after hearing has allowed 80% stay on the merit of the case has ordered
to deposit Rs. 50,00,000/- which has been complied with. The case is pending for final hearing before CESTAT.

4 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a demand
of Rs. 75,21,154/- and Rs. 14,75,479/- from Assistant Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, (Recovery-22), Bangalore
for nonpayment of VAT/CST liability on online information and data access services provided by the Company for
the months of February 06, March 06, April 06 to Mar 07 and from Apr 07 to Mar 08 respectively. The company had
preferred appeals before Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes (Appeal-2), Bangalore against the said orders
where the demand has been upheld by the JC.
The Company is in process of filing an appeal before Appellate Tribunal, Commercial Tax, Karnataka on the
bonafide belief that the online information service is not liable to VAT.

5 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a
demand notice of Rs. 4,89,732/- including interest and penalty dated 9 Mar 2012 from Assistant Commissioner
of Service Tax, Div-II, Gr. XII, Bangalore for the period 2007-08 to 2010-11 alleging that the company has wrongly taken
input credit on Air travel and catering service. The company has filed an appeal against the said demand notice.
The hearing in the subject matter has been done and the order is reserved by the Commissioner (Appeal-II),
Bangalore.

6 Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited (now merged with Dion Global Solutions Limited) has received a
show cause notice of Rs. 1,22,17,564/- dated 02 Apr 2012 from Commissioner of Service Tax, Div-II, Gr. XII,
Bangalore for the period 2008-09 to 2010-11 alleging short payment of tax on software development revenue.
The company has filed reply before Commissioner of Central Excise (Adjudication), Bangalore against the said
SCN notice on the bonafide belief that the tax has been duly charged and paid by the Company on said
activities as per the provisions of law.

7 Deal Depot Equities (DDE), has filed a summary suit in the High Court of Bombay (Original Civil Jurisdiction)
(summary suit no. 612 of 2010) against Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited, which has now been merged
with DION. DDE has alleged that in pursuant to purchase order of software namely “Trade Anywhere” to
Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited , the same was followed by part payment of sum of Rs. 6,75,000/-.
Religare Technova Global Solutions Limited did not install and activate the same. DDE has prayed for refund
of advance sum paid of Rs. 6,75,000/- along with interest at the rate 6% . The Hon’ble High Court has transferred
the matter to City Civil Court and the matter is currently pending.

8 Unimetal Ispat Limited had filed a suit (being M.S. No. 13/1997) against DION, before the Civil Judge (Senior
Division) at Alipore, raising an aggregate claim of Rs. 11,00,000/-, in which a decree was granted by the Civil
Judge (Senior Division) at Alipore. DION has filed an appeal in this matter in the High Court of Kolkata. The
matter is currently pending.

25 Revenue from Operations

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Sale of Products

License Fees 533,217,978  765,365,524

Hardware Revenue –  4,370,162

Sale of Services

Software Development 807,183,197  530,595,775

Subscription / Maintenance Revenue  887,487,584  1,182,094,920

Total  2,227,888,759 2,482,426,381
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26 Other Income

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Interest Income  108,986,062 108,746,386

Net gain / loss on sale of Current investments

Profit from Sale/Purchase of Investments  1,823,123 991,844

Other Non Operating Income (net of expenses)

Bad Debts Recovered 490,000  630,000

Miscellenous Income  108,386,240  1,983,397

Balances Written Back  506,557  11,779,910

Exchange Fluctuation (Net)  18,609,287 –

Total  238,801,269 124,131,537

27 Employee Benefit Expenses

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Salaries and Wages 1,549,322,164  1,450,279,354

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 154,562,949  118,062,777

Staff Welfare Expenses 23,176,459  24,600,970

Training and Recruitment Expenses 13,027,157  16,802,932

Total  1,740,088,729 1,609,746,033

28 Finance Costs

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Interest Expense

Interest - Corporate Loans 77,067,861  157,758,621

Interest - Others 197,730,629  49,911,981

Other Borrowing Costs  24,897,869  15,831,375

Total  299,696,359 223,501,977

29 Depreciation and Amortization

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Depreciation 26,944,686  31,223,485

Amortization  134,580,682  118,480,003

Total  161,525,368  149,703,488

30 Other Expenses

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Rent 149,562,823  156,080,114

Repairs and Maintenance  29,028,001  23,841,395

Insurance  27,503,663  21,103,741
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30 Other Expenses (Contd.)

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Rates and Taxes, excluding, taxes on income  2,399,379  1,370,100

Advertisement and Sales Promotion  56,062,823  65,213,565

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Bad Debts  9,742,742  14,607,388

Legal and Professional Charges  67,100,291  55,581,841

Membership, Subscription and Empanelment Fees  22,859,381  16,568,145

Travelling and Conveyance  115,478,129  107,626,101

Electricity and Water Expenses  9,679,348  9,925,308

Postage and Telephones  52,998,392  54,013,118

Printing and Stationery  3,994,224  3,886,841

Loss on sale/Write off of Fixed Assets  (46,403)  2,763,781

Donation and Charity  21,624  27,869

Bank Charges  10,392,581  3,097,326

Database Management and Software Expense  40,515,266  23,076,842

Miscellaneous Expenses  498,264  246,044

Other Operating Expenses  154,413,858  172,642,396

Payment to Auditors (refer note 30.1)  8,340,788  9,486,844

Exchange Fluctuation (Net) –  14,220,100

General expenses  59,177,780  36,369,938

Total  819,722,954 791,748,797

30.1 Payment to Auditors*
For the year For the year

ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

As Auditors:
Audit Fees 6,235,862  7,426,455
Tax Audit Fees 75,000  75,000

In Other Capacity :
Other Services 1,960,456  1,941,684

Reimbursement of Expenses  69,470 43,705
Total  8,340,788 9,486,844

* Excluding Service Tax
31 Exceptional Items

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Balances Written Back  –  –
Provision for Dimunition in value of Investment - Unquoted –  18,736,000
Provision for Dimunition in value of Investment - Quoted  –  4,267,779
Prior year adjustment for Land write off  –  2,332,800
Prior year adjustment due to change in accounting policy (Refer Note 31.1)  –  20,279,524
Total  – 45,616,103

31.1 Previously, the AEOIU Ltd. a group company had recognized the Income as per the policy i.e Income to be
recognized either on delivery of the products or the customers entered into a contract with the company to
acquire its products but delivery of these products were pending. However during the year, AEOIU Ltd. has changed
its income recognition policy to recognise income when the products were delivered to the customers.
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As a result of the change in accounting policy, a prior year adjustment has been made as per FRS 3 which states
that a prior period adjustment is required in the instance of a change in accounting policy in an accounting
period. Contracts agreed but not delivered in the previous year amounted to £319,732 (Equivalent to ` 28,187,438).
The 2011 Corporation Tax computation has been updated to reflect this change in accounting policy and the
adjusted provision is £89,700 (Equivalent to ` 7,907,914) lower than previously shown. The total effect of the
adjustments reduced distributable reserves at 31 December 2011 by £230,032 (Equivalent to ` 20,279,524).

32 Tax Expenses
For the year For the year

ended ended
Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Current Tax  –  11,028,994
Deferred Tax  (1,676)  (3,165)
Earlier Year Tax  15,268,462 –
Total  15,266,786 11,025,829

33 Earnings per Equity Shares

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax (527,615,898)  (242,076,152)
Less: Dividend on Cumulative Preference Shares (1,000,000)  (1,000,000)
Less: Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax on Cumulative Preference Shares (162,225)  (162,225)
Profit/(Loss) available for Equity Shareholders (528,778,123)  (243,238,377)
Weighted average number of equity share

For Basic EPS (No.) 32,227,406  32,227,406
For Diluted EPS (No.) 32,366,687  32,366,687
Nominal Value of shares (`) 10  10

Earning per share
Basic  (16.41) (7.55)
Diluted (16.34) (7.52)

34 Transfer from / to Provisions

For the year For the year
ended ended

Particulars 31 March, 2014 31 March, 2013

` `

Transfer to Provisions

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 3,852,069  3,834,728
Total  3,852,069 3,834,728

35 Disclosures relating to Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity & Leave Encashment Liability: (Amount in `)

Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

I Assumptions as at 31st March, 2014

Mortality LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96) LIC (1994-96)
Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate

Discount Rate 8% p.a. 8% p.a. 8% p.a. 8% p.a.

Expected Rate of return on plan assets  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.

Expected Average Remaining Service 24 24 30 24

II Changes in present value of obligations

Present Value of Obligation at April 1, 2013  11,292,366  8,482,252  2,016,578  1,798,151

Interest Cost 973,124  806,974 176,051  179,850

Current Service Cost  3,275,643  3,237,707 1,768,907  1,529,946
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Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

2013-14 2012-13 2013-14 2012-13

Liabilities assumed on transferred employees – –  –  –
 –

Benefits Paid 2,418,263  788,845 668,156  600,338

Actuarial Gain /(Loss) on Obligation (257,906)  445,722  576,198  891,031

Present Value of Obligation at March 31, 2014  13,380,776  11,292,366 2,717,182  2,016,578

III Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at April 1, 2013 N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Expected Return of Plan Assets – – – –

Benefits paid  –  –  –  –

Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets –  – – –

Fair Value of Plan Assets at March 31, 2014  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.

IV Amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present Value of Obligation at March 31, 2014  13,380,776  11,292,366 2,717,182  2,016,578

Fair Value of Plan Assets at March 31, 2014 – – – -

Amount recd/receivable on transfer of employees –  – – -

Un-funded Liability at March 31,2014 13,380,776  11,292,366 2,717,182  2,016,578

Un recognized Actuarial Gain /(Loss)  – – – -

Net (Asset)/Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet  13,380,776  11,292,366 2,717,182  2,016,578

V Expense recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss

Interest Cost  973,124  806,974 176,051  179,850

Current Service Cost  3,275,643  3,237,707  1,768,907  1,529,946

Expected Return on Plan Assets –  – – –

Net Actuarial Gain /(Loss) recognized for the period  (257,906)  445,722 576,198  891,031

Expense recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss A/c  4,506,673  3,598,959 1,368,760  818,765

VI Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at March 31, 2014
as per Revised Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956

Current Liability  1,338,078  1,129,237 679,296  504,145

Non Current Liability  12,042,698  10,163,129  2,037,886  1,512,433

Total of Present Value of Obligation as at March 31, 2014 13,380,776  11,292,366  2,717,182  2,016,578

36 Segment Reporting:

Primary Segment – Business Segments:

Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17), taking into account the
organization structure as well as the differential risks and returns of these segments.

Segment revenue and results figures include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and also amounts
allocated on a reasonable basis. Other unallocable expenditure includes expenses incurred on common services provided
to the segments which are not directly identifiable to the individual segments as well as expenses incurred at a corporate
level which relate to the Company as a whole. The business segment has been considered as the primary segment.

i Information about Primary Business Segments (Amount in `)
Particulars Financial Business Software Product/Services Unallocated Total

2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013

(i) Segment Revenue

External Revenue 490,000 580,000 2,466,200,028 2,605,977,918 – – 2,466,690,028 2,606,557,918

Inter-Segmental Revenue –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Total Revenue 490,000 580,000 2,466,200,028 2,605,977,918 –  – 2,466,690,028 2,606,557,918

(ii) Segment Results

Total Segment Results 268,956  (24,987,679)  (569,879,125)  (199,796,630)  – –  (569,610,169)  (224,784,309)

Unallocated Expenses (net) –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Unallocated Interest expenses –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –

Income Taxes –  –  –  –  –  – – –
(Current and Deferred Tax)

Profit after tax 268,956  (24,987,679)  (569,879,125)  (199,796,630)  –  –  (569,610,169)  (224,784,309)
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(Amount in `)
Particulars Financial Business Software Product/Services Unallocated Total

2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013 2013-2014 2012-2013

(iii) Segment Assets  –  – 5,143,247,494 5,510,115,164  – – 5,143,247,494 5,510,115,164

Unallocated Corporate Assets  –  –  – – 1,002,109,007 575,801,392 1,002,109,007 575,801,392

Total Assets – – 5,143,247,494 5,510,115,164 1,002,109,007 575,801,392 6,145,356,501 6,085,916,556

(iv) Segment Liabilities –  – 4,102,399,470 3,599,598,929 – – 4,102,399,470 3,599,598,929

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities  – –  –  –  –  –  – –

Total Liabilities –  – 4,102,399,470 3,599,598,929  –  – 4,102,399,470 3,599,598,929

(v) Capital Expenditure –  – 138,940,024 40,266,628  – – 138,940,024 40,266,628

Unallocated Capital expenditure  –  –  –  – –  –  – –

Total Capital expenditure –  – 138,940,024 40,266,628  – – 138,940,024 40,266,628

(vi) Depreciation / Amortisation –  – 161,525,368 149,703,488  –  – 161,525,368 149,703,488

Unallocated Depreciation amount –  –  –  –  – –  – –

Total Depreciation –  – 161,525,368 149,703,488  –  – 161,525,368 149,703,488

(vii) Non Cash Expenditure other
than Depreciation –  –  (46,403) 2,763,781  –  –  (46,403) 2,763,781

Unallocated Non cash expenditure  –  –  –  –  –  –  – –

Total Non cash expenditure –  –  (46,403) 2,763,781  –  –  (46,403) 2,763,781

ii) Secondary Segment – Geographical Segments

Revenue from geographical segment is based on location of its customers and total carrying amount of assets and
total cost incurred during the period to acquire fixed assets is based on geographical locations of the assets.

Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

` `

Segment Revenue:

Within India 326,651,440 305,502,486

Within Australia 249,753,848 662,270,992

Others 1,890,284,740 1,638,784,440

Total 2,466,690,028 2,606,557,917

Segment Assets:

Within India 3,939,072,068 4,026,041,437

Within Australia 578,897,076 773,009,396

Others 1,627,387,357 1,286,865,723

Total 6,145,356,501 6,085,916,556

Cost incurred for acquiring segment assets:

Within India 10,387,949 29,146,814

Within Australia 928,288 5,142,363

Others 127,623,787 5,977,451

Total 138,940,024 40,266,628
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37. Related Party:
Nature of Relationship Name of the Party
i) Subsidiary Companies 1 OliveRays Innovations Ltd.

2 Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd.

ii) Step Down Subsidiaries 1 Dion Global Solutions Pty. Ltd.

2 Dion Global Solutions (Australia) Pty Ltd.
3 Dion Global Solutions (Developments) Pty Ltd.
4 Dion Global Solutions (Asia Pacific) Pty Ltd.
5 Dion Global Solutions (NZ) Ltd.
6 Dion Global Solutions (HK) Ltd.
7 Dion Global Solutions (UK) Ltd.
8 Dion Global Solutions (MY) Sdn. Bhd.
9 Dion Global Solutions (Singapore) Pte. Ltd
10 Dion Global Solutions Vietnam Company Ltd.
11 Dion Global Solutions Inc.
12 Indigo (London) Holdings Ltd.
13 Indigo (London) Limited
14 Investmaster Holdings Limited
15 Dion Global Solutions (London) Limited
16 Adminsource (UK) Limited
17 Consort Information Systems Limited
18 Consort Securities Systems Limited
19 Dion Global Solutions (Canada) Ltd.
20 Dion Global Solutions Gmbh
21 Imagnos AG (Under Liquidation)

iii) Associate Companies 1 AEOIU Ltd.
2 Chase Cooper Ltd
3 DBS Financial Systems Ltd

iv) Individuals owning, directly or indirectly interest 1 Mr. Malvinder Mohan Singh
in voting power that gives them control. 2 Mr. Shivinder Mohan Singh

v) Key management personnel 1 Mr.Ralph James Horne
2 Mr.Joseph Leslie Nash

vi) Enterprises over which any person described in 1 Bartleet Religare Securities (Pvt) Ltd
(iii) or (iv) is able to exercise significant influence 2 Finserve Shared Services Limited
with whom transactions have taken place 3 Healthfore Technologies Limited

4 Ligare Travels Limited
5 Luxury Farms Private Ltd.
6 Oscar Investments Ltd.
7 Regius Overseas Holding Co. Ltd.
8 REL Infrafacilities Limited
9 Religare Bullion Limited
10 Religare Capital Markets Limited
11 Religare Commodities Limited
12 Religare Enterprises Limited
13 Religare Finvest Limited
14 Religare Health Insurance Company Ltd
15 Religare Housing Development Finance Corp. Ltd.
16 SMPL Financial Consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd.
17 Religare Invesco Asset Management Company Pvt. Ltd.
18 Religare Securities Limited
19 Religare Wealth Management Limited
20 RHC Holding Private Limited
21 RHC IT Solutions Private Limited
22 RHC IT Solutions Pty Limited
23 RHC Financial Services (Mauritius) Ltd
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38 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Particulars 2014 2013

` `

Non-Cancellable Operating Leases

Within 1 year 97,613,351  85,999,773

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 133,207,292  58,949,118

Total  230,820,643  144,948,891

39 OTHER NOTES

a. The Group has unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses. Accordingly, keeping in view uncertainty
of taxable income in the future, provision for deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognized in the
accounts.

b. Goodwill arising on consolidation as carried in the books of accounts has been tested for impairment. In the
opinion of the management, based on future projections of revenue and cash flows drawn up by the subsidiaries
and keeping in mind the strategic nature of the products sold in these subsidiaries no provision for impairment
has been made during the year.

c. The Group shares certain costs/service charges with other Companies in the group. These costs have been
allocated between the companies on the basis mutually agreed upon, which has been relied upon by the
auditors.

40 PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES

Figures of the Previous Year have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified to conform to the current year
classification.

There is no other information apart from the information already disclosed above required to be disclosed pursuant
to the relevant claused of Revised Schedule VI as inserted to the Companies Act by the Notification No. S.O.447 (E),
Dated 28-02-2011 (As amended by Notification No. F.NO.2/6/2008-CL-V, Dated 30-03-2011).

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
FOR S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. Ralph James Horne Maninder Singh Grewal
Chartered Accountants Global CEO & Managing Director Chairman
Firm Registration No.000756N DIN : 03297973 DIN : 00648031

Sd/- Sd/-
(K. K. Tulshan) Tarun Rastogi
Partner VP-Legal & Company Secretary
Membership No. 085033

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2014 Date : May 27, 2014

www.dionglobal.com
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